
Office of Corporate Manager Democratic & Civic Support

Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter, EX1 1JN Tel: 01392 277888 Fax: 01392 265593 www.exeter.gov.uk

PLANNING

Date: Monday 24 June 2019
Time: 5.30 pm
Venue: Rennes Room, Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business. 

If you have an enquiry regarding any items on this agenda, please contact Howard Bassett, 
Democratic Services Officer (Committees) on 01392 265107.

Entry to the Civic Centre can be gained through the Customer Service Centre, Paris Street.

Membership -
Councillors Lyons (Chair), Williams (Deputy Chair), Bialyk, Branston, Foale, Ghusain, Harvey, 
Mrs Henson, Mitchell, M, Morse, Pierce, Sheldon and Sutton

Agenda

Part I: Items suggested for discussion with the press and public present

1   Apologies

To receive apologies for absence from Committee members.

2   Minutes

To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 15 April 2019. (Pages 5 - 
32)

3   Declarations of Interest

Councillors are reminded of the need to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests that relate to business on the agenda and which have not already been 
included in the register of interests, before any discussion takes place on the 
item. Unless the interest is sensitive, you must also disclose the nature of the 
interest. In accordance with the Council's Code of Conduct, you must then leave 
the room and must not participate in any further discussion of the item. 
Councillors requiring clarification should seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer 
prior to the day of the meeting.

4   LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 EXCLUSION 
OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

It is not considered that the Committee would be likely to exclude the press and 

http://www.exeter.gov.uk/


public during the consideration of any of the items on this agenda but, if it should 
wish to do so, then the following resolution should be passed: -

RECOMMENDED that, under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for particular item(s) on the 
grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in the relevant paragraphs of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Act.

Public Speaking

Public speaking on planning applications and tree preservation orders is permitted at this 
Committee.  Only one speaker in support and one opposed to the application may speak and the 

request must be made by 10 am on the Thursday before the meeting (full details available on 
request from the Democratic Services Officer).

5   Planning Application No. 18/1120/OUT - Land adjoining 46 Newcourt Road, 
Exeter

To consider the report of the Service Lead City Development. (Pages 33 
- 46)

6   List of Decisions Made and Withdrawn Applications

To consider the report of the Service Lead City Development. (Pages 47 
- 64)

7   Appeals Report

To consider the report of the Service Lead City Development.
 

(Pages 65 
- 68)

8   Site Inspection party - Rota for Visits

To consider the report of the Corporate Manager Democratic and Civic Support. (Pages 69 
- 70)

9   SITE INSPECTION PARTY

To advise that the next Site Inspection Party will be held on Tuesday 16 July 2019 
at 
9.30 a.m.  The Councillors attending will be Bialyk, Branston and Foale.

Date of Next Meeting

The next scheduled meeting of the Planning Committee will be held on Monday 22 July 2019 at 5.30 
pm in the Civic Centre.

Find out more about Exeter City Council services by looking at our web site http://www.exeter.gov.uk.  
This will give you the dates of all future Committee meetings and tell you how you can ask a question 



at a Scrutiny Committee meeting.  Alternatively, contact the Democratic Services Officer 
(Committees) on (01392) 265107 for further information.

Follow us:
www.twitter.com/ExeterCouncil
www.facebook.com/ExeterCityCouncil

Individual reports on this agenda can be produced in large print on 
request to Democratic Services (Committees) on 01392 265107.

http://www.twitter.com/ExeterCouncil
http://www.facebook.com/ExeterCityCouncil


This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING COMMITTEE

Monday 15 April 2019
Present:-

Councillor Sutton (Chair)
Councillors Lyons, Bialyk, Branston, Edwards, Harvey, Mrs Henson, Morse, Prowse, 
Sheldon, Thompson and Vizard
Also Present

Director (BA), City Solicitor & Head of HR, Service Lead City Development, Assistant City 
Development Manager, Principal Project Manager (Development) (MH), Project Manager 
(Planning) (ZN), Litigation Solicitor and Democratic Services Officer

21 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 18 March 2019 were taken as read, approved 
and signed by the Chair as correct.

22 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declarations of interest were made by Members.

23 PLANNING APPLICATION NO. 18/0873/FUL - LAND AT RIBSTON AVENUE, 
EXETER

The Chair made the following statement in respect of the application for the 
construction of a 54 bed independent hospital (Use Class C2) with access, car 
parking, landscaping/open space and associated works:-

“Planning Committee has previously considered this application at its meeting on 
the 3 December 2018. The Committee resolved to grant planning permission in 
accordance with the officer recommendation set out in the report. Before the 
Planning Permission was issued, the Hill Barton Residents Association applied to 
Judicially Review the Council’s decision. The grounds for Judicial Review were in 
brief:-

1. Failure of the Council to discharge its duty under Section 11(2) of the 
Children’s Act 2004 by failing to consult properly;

2. Failure of Devon County Council to declare a financial interest in the 
application (as owner of the land) and having undue influence upon the 
decision as a statutory consultee (highways and flooding);

3. Failure to impose a condition excluding the use of the development within 
Class C2a of the Use Classes Order 1987/764;

4. Failure to secure a planning contribution for the benefit of the school.

On reflection, the Council agreed that it should re-consider its decision in the light 
of the matters referred to in ground 1. As a result, the Judicial Review was 
discontinued by the Hill Barton Residents Association. Today, the report has been 
prepared in substitution of the original report to allow the Committee to consider 
the application afresh, taking into account all the information and responses we 
now have.”  

The Chair reminded Members that, as decision makers, they may be predisposed 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



to particular views. However, if any Member had closed their mind to any possibility 
beyond that predisposition, with the effect that they would be unable to apply their 
judgment fully and properly to the matter in hand and to take into account new 
information as set out in the report and not minded to listen to what is being said 
both for and against the application, then they must absent themselves from 
determining the matter on the basis that they have predetermined the application. 

A Member suggested that three Members of the Committee, from comments made 
at 3 December meeting of this Committee, had shown themselves to have been 
predisposed to certain views. The City Solicitor and Head of Human Resources 
quoted the provisions of Section 25 of the Localism Act 2011 and, following a 
number of questions to the Members concerned, was of the view that on the face 
of it, the Members concerned appeared to be still open minded and none appeared 
to have already made up their mind as to which way to vote.
 
The Service Lead City Development introduced the report stating that it was an 
amalgam of the previous report with additional information added following further 
consultations. It specifically covered safeguarding matters following further 
information from the public and third parties and also covered the Council’s 
obligations under the Equalities Act 2010.

The Principal Project Manager (Development) (MH) presented the details of the 
application which were the same as those reported to the 3 December meeting, 
other than changes to the boundary fencing. He explained that it was now 
proposed that the entire boundary would be three metres high with mesh fencing, 
apart from an area of fencing near the service road which was a two metre high 
mesh fencing on top of a one metre high gabion basket wall. 

The Service Lead City Development reported that the following additional 
consultations had taken place:-

 Environmental Health on noise matters;
 Police Designing Out Crime Team;
 NHS - Safeguarding;
 Safeguarding Adults Board Devon County Council (DCC);
 Safeguarding Children Board (DCC) - now Devon Children and Families 

Partnership;
 Plymouth Diocese - Safeguarding Lead;
 Head Teacher St Nicholas RC Primary School;
 Plymouth CAST (Multi-academy trust of 36 Catholic Schools across South 

West of England);
 Devon County Council (DCC) as Local Education Authority (LEA); and
 Devon Partnership NHS Trust.

and referred to the representations received from the following consultees:-

 Chief Nursing Officer South Devon and Torbay Clinical Commissioning 
Group who had no objections on safeguarding grounds; 

 the Devon Children’s and Families Partnership who had no objections and 
welcomed the enhancement of mental health provision; 

 the safeguarding lead of the Plymouth Diocese who was concerned 
regarding the difficulty in guaranteeing safety;  

 the Headteacher of the St. Nicholas RC Primary School who, in addition to 
objecting, asked that, should the application be approved, a condition be 

Page 6



added to prevent the facility taking on individuals who had connections with 
the Criminal Justice System and requesting that the Section 106 
Agreement include a provision for a financial contribution to the school; 

 the Devon Partnership NHS Trust who sought a balance between the 
element of risk and safeguarding against alienating people with mental 
health needs;

 Plymouth CAST (Multi-academy trust of 36 Catholic Schools across South 
West of England) who supported the Headteacher; and 

 Devon County Council as education authority who had no objections on 
safeguarding grounds, as the public health body who did not object, subject 
to the facility meeting the standards of the Care Quality Commission and as 
a Children’s Service stating that there was no evidence to give rise to 
concerns from a safeguarding point of view from other Cygnet facilities.  

The Service Lead City Development stated that, following the additional 
consultations undertaken, and further representations received in respect of the 
proposal, additional questions/matters of clarification had been put to the applicant. 
He highlighted Cygnet’s response in respect of safeguarding and their confirmation 
that they intended to comply fully with Care Quality Commission standards.

The Service Lead City Development explained that the facility would be for the 
provision of care and treatment to patients falling within the ‘Acute to Low Secure’ 
range only. The application was for a hospital falling within Class C2 of the Use 
Classes Order, the principal feature being the provision of ‘care’ which was 
personal care for people in need of such care by reasons of past or present mental 
disorder. The City Development Manager reminded Members that, in planning 
terms, whether a particular use or facility falls within any use class is to be 
determined by its primary purpose.

The difference between ‘security’ in this context (Class C2) and that in respect of 
secure residential institutions falling within Class C2a - including secure hospitals 
alongside uses such as prisons, detention centres and custody centres which 
might be considered less appropriate in a residential area - had previously been 
recognised by the Courts. The difference being that, in respect of a Class C2a use, 
their main purpose was to keep persons under control who were a potential danger 
to society at large as opposed to residential institutions whose primary function 
was the provision of care to people in need of care, albeit they may incorporate 
ancillary security measures as part of the delivery of that care. Should a proposal 
come forward for a Class C2a use in respect of this facility, a new planning 
application would be required.

With regard to the Equalities Act 2010, the Service Lead City Development advised 
that the Council should have regard to people with protected characteristics which 
in this case covered both children and people with mental illnesses. It was 
considered that there was no negative impact from an equality perspective 
because of the design of the facility, management arrangements and the 
requirements of the regulatory regimes.    

The Service Lead City Development referred to representations received circulated 
with the update sheet and a further representation received on the day of the 
meeting relating to highways matters which had been seen by the Highways 
Officer.

The Service Lead City Development stated, that in view of the issues reported, the 
recommendation was for approval, subject to the conditions as set out in the report 

Page 7



including a Section 106 Agreement covering public open space and a traffic order.

Members were advised, in response to queries from a Member, that Devon County 
Council rather than the Department of Transport were the appropriate consultee on 
highways issues. The Service Lead City Development also confirmed, in response 
to a Member, that no consultation response had been received from Ofsted. 
Responding to two Members, he re-iterated that any application for a Class C2a 
use would be the subject of a planning application to be considered by this 
Committee and that a Class C2 use was in respect of treating ill people. 

Councillor Holland, having given notice under Standing Order No. 44, spoke on the 
item. He raised the following points:-

 representing the views and concerns of the community. The objection is not 
to the provision of mental health services which are much needed;

 the National Planning Policy Framework states that development should 
only be prevented or refused on highways grounds if there would be an 
unacceptable impact on highways safety. It is believed that there will be an 
unacceptable cumulative impact on traffic flow on Hill Barton Road;

 there is evidence that the judgement made by Devon County Council 
Highways is flawed as their determination was based, in part, on incorrect 
data provided by Cygnet Health Care's Transport Statement following a 
survey by Northern Transport Planning Ltd;

 an increase in the number of vehicles will have a serious impact on 
Bramley Avenue where there are already existing traffic issues and grid-
lock can be anticipated. Bramley Avenue has a very high level of traffic flow 
in the morning peak as evidenced from an independent survey conducted 
in recent days which showed 120 vehicles an hour rather than 30 vehicles 
an hour. There are already issues with congestion and any additional traffic 
from this hospital will exacerbate problems. There will be additional traffic 
on Lower Hill Barton Road, an important commuter corridor, which will also 
adversely impact on Bramley Avenue; 

 additional traffic will also result from the two shift system for nursing staff at 
the hospital; 

 hospitals attract additional vehicle activity from the Ambulance Service, the 
Police and the Fire Brigade. Rescue appliances will not be able to get to a 
life threatening incident either at the hospital, or on the Hill Barton 
residential estate, because Bramley Avenue will be grid-locked by too much 
traffic;

 Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Service have not been consulted on 
this development;

 a foot/cycle path between Warwick Road and Ribston Avenue is proposed 
which will allow access along the school boundary. This will enable patients 
on supervised or unsupervised release to walk immediately next to the play 
areas of St. Nicholas Primary School which will compromise the safety of 
children. The potential for contact with pupils is further grounds for the 
application to be declined;

 security measures agreed with the police were given “in confidence” and it 
is therefore felt that the Exeter City Council cannot determine the case nor 
can St. Nicholas Primary School properly conduct a safeguarding risk 
assessment; 

 approval would be contrary to the Council’s safeguarding policy;
 the number of applications for the reception year group in September 2019 

is low as a number of parents had not applied to St Nicholas;
 there has not been any collaborative discussion to identify and resolve key 

Page 8



planning issues before this application was submitted and no consultation 
with Devon Children and Families Partnership; 

 serious concerns around the issue of safeguarding and risk, child protection 
and the welfare of pupils and, in addition, the staff and wider school 
community;  

 it is for those with the statutory responsibility for child protection to comment 
and determine on safeguarding issues not planning officers;

 real concerns about safeguarding and Cygnet appear almost dismissive of 
safeguarding;

 a Community Impact Assessment requested by the Devon Children’s and 
Families Partnership has not been carried out;

 believe, in line with NHS England guidance, that low secure services 
provide care and treatment for those who present a significant risk of harm 
to others. As such, and because of the profile of potential patients at this 
facility, it should not be situated next to any school. With 350 children aged 
3 to 11 on roll at St. Nicholas Primary School it is not only the fact that the 
patients present a risk of escape but the risk profile of those who may 
escape which creates the safeguarding problem;

 Cygnet Healthcare Trust may later change their operational 
statement/admissions criteria and accept higher risk patients; 

 the lead OFSTED Inspector stated that the site was totally inappropriate for 
a Secure Unit and the Director of Education for Warwickshire and the 
National Association of Headteachers all express serious reservations;

 none of the 500 Devon schools are sited next to a prison or secure unit; 
and

 as a former Head of primary schools, believe that granting planning 
permission for a secure unit in such close proximity to a school with 350 
pupils compromises the safety of children.

The Highways Development Management Officer responded to highways issues 
raised:-

 the traffic generated as part of the application could not be classed as 
severe as the Planning Inspector had come to the same assessment at 
appeal in respect of the planning application for the adjacent housing 
development site;

 restrictive highway conditions such as one way systems and residents’ 
parking areas were to be found across the city which did not restrict access 
by emergency vehicles; and

 not aware that the Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Authority had not 
been consulted; and

 the footpath from the Ringswell Avenue residential site to Warwick Road, to 
which the applications site would connect into, is beneficial in respect of 
improving overall connectivity without which opportunities for cycling and 
walking would be reduced.

Councillor Holland responded as follows to Members’ queries:-

 do not accept the applicant’s transport statement which is inapplicable to 
this site and is counter to the independent survey carried out by local 
residents. Traffic problems in the area will be exacerbated should this 
development proceed;

 the Headteacher states that only 29 spaces had been filled at the March cut 
off point leaving a shortfall in the school budget of £64,000; and

 safeguarding issue is of prime concern and “blue light” vehicles 

Page 9



approaching the hospital in the event of any issues from patients with acute 
problems are likely to impact adversely on children.

Mr Taghdissian spoke against the application. He raised the following points:-

 serious concerns regarding the safety of children attending the school 
which includes the safety of own child who is taken to school by parents via 
the Warwick Road entrance, the development therefore presenting a risk to 
children as well as the community in general;

 at a Cygnet facility in Wrexham, costs were awarded against the applicant 
for failing to address safeguarding issues, yet Cygnet believe that, for this 
application, safeguarding measures have been adequately addressed; 

 Cygnet have not had meaningful communications with the Devon 
Partnership NHS Trust regarding the nature of bed provision for those with 
mental health issues;

 Cygnet state that the facility is not designed with security in mind; and
 wrong to grant permission given that the issues of safeguarding have not 

been addressed and the facility will adversely affect children and the wider 
community.

Responding to a Member’s query, he stated that the offers of Cygnet not to cater 
for individuals who had dealings with the Criminal Justice System and to assist the 
school with a financial contribution indicated that there was a recognition that this 
facility was not wholly appropriate within this location. 

Following a number of requests from the Chair and in accordance with Standing 
Order No 24 (3), the meeting was adjourned at 6.40 pm for five minutes because of 
disturbance from a member of the public. The individual in question left the 
building. 

Carl Dyer spoke in support of the application. He raised the following points:-

 clear need for the facility, identified by Devon Partnership NHS Trust, 
Devon County Council Public Health and the Devon County Council 
safeguarding team;

 many, including CAST, who object, accept that there is a need although 
many also suggest that it should be elsewhere which may not the best way 
to make already vulnerable people feel valued members of the community;

 independent, objective professionals are happy with the proposal:
 the Police, NHS safeguarding, Devon County Council, the safeguarding 

children’s board and the local education authority are supportive;
 the hospital will be monitored by the Care Quality Commission (CQC) who 

will ensure appropriate standards are met;
 it will be a Class C2 hospital, providing care to those in need of care not a 

Class C2a facility and it cannot change to a Class C2a hospital without a 
new planning application. 

 in Maidstone, the Council is currently building a primary school next to a 
Cygnet hospital;

 the recommended planning conditions are acceptable and Cygnet will enter 
into a Section 106 obligation and there is no need for funding for the Police; 
and

 first time in the last 37 years had to address objections to a hospital.

He responded as follows to Members’ queries:-

Page 10



 the applicant had made a clear commitment not to put people in the facility 
who have been involved with the Criminal Justice System; and

 a commitment also made that this would not become a Class C2a use 
facility and that, although there were some security measures, the facility 
was not a secure unit. 

Some Members opposed the application highlighting the restrictive size of the site, 
suggesting that the environment, as well as presenting problems to the local 
community and the nearby school, would be unsuitable for the occupants of the 
facility. They questioned the track record of the operator, referred to some issues 
that had been raised by the Devon NHS Partnership Trust and the insufficient 
communication with them by the applicant and raised the potential problems 
regarding staff recruitment. They referred to the concerns of both the Headteacher 
and the Safeguarding Lead of the Plymouth Diocese. They did not accept the 
accuracy or relevance of the transport statement provided by the applicant and 
highlighted, in particular, the closeness of the facility to the school and the real 
concerns expressed that the safety of the school children would be compromised. 
They did not feel that the school and the unit could co-exist next to one another 
given the safeguarding issues raised. One Member also referred to the nature of 
acute illness in a mental health context, stating that an acute episode could 
emerge suddenly and that the designation of this unit as low risk did not accord 
with the potential for such incidents to occur. They also stated that the location was 
inappropriate in this long established community.

Other Members fully supported the recommendation. They welcomed the 
comprehensive report produced since the meeting on 3 December which covered 
the consultations undertaken enabling matters to be looked at afresh. They 
referred to the confirmation that the facility was a Class C2 use and not a Class 
C2a use and the assurance that it would not be converted to Class C2a use noting 
that a separate planning application was necessary for any such proposal. It was 
emphasised that the facility would need to operate in accordance with the 
requirements of the Care Quality Commission and it was also stated that any 
transfer of patients to and from such facilities were normally undertaken in private, 
unmarked vehicles. The Members supporting the proposal accepted conclusions 
put in respect of traffic matters by the County Council Highways Officer, one 
referring to the Inspector’s decision on the nearby housing development in respect 
of highway matters. She also emphasised the need to have regard to the 
safeguarding of vulnerable people over the age of 18, that is, the future patients of 
the unit. Reference was made to the fact that the hospital would, when need arose, 
cater for residents of the local and wider Exeter community.
 
RESOLVED that, subject to the completion of a Section 106 Agreement under the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 covering:-

 public open space – provision of public access and maintenance 
arrangements; and

 a traffic order contribution of £3,000.

planning permission for the construction of a 54 bed independent hospital (Use 
Class C2) with access, car parking, landscaping/open space and associated works 
be APPROVED, subject to the following conditions:-

1) The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later 
than the expiration of three years beginning with the date on which this 
permission is granted.
Reason: To ensure compliance with sections 91 and 92 of the Town and 

Page 11



Country Planning Act 1990.

2) The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than 
in strict accordance with the submitted details received by the Local 
Planning Authority on 5th June, 11th and 19th October 2018, and 11th, 18th 
and 29th March 2019 (including dwg. nos. CYG-PHS-XX-ZZ-DR-A-90-001 
Rev P1, CYG-PHS-XX-ZZ-DR-A-90-003 Rev P1, CYG-PHS-XX-ZZ-DR-A-
90-004 Rev P6, CYG-PHS-XX-00-DR-A-22-001 Rev P2, CYG-PHS-XX-01-
DR-A-22-002 Rev P2, CYG-PHS-XX-ZZ-DR-A-27-001 Rev P1, CYG-PHS-
XX-ZZ-DR-A-20-001 Rev P5, CYG-PHS-XX-ZZ-DR-A-90-005 Rev P3, 
Landscape General Arrangement 001I, Landscape Design 003 and 
Landscape Site Sections 002E) as modified by other conditions of this 
consent.
Reason: In order to ensure compliance with the approved drawings.

3) Pre commencement condition: No development related works shall take 
place within the site until a written scheme of archaeological work has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This 
scheme shall include on-site work, and off site work such as the analysis, 
publication, and archiving of the results, together with a timetable for 
completion of each element. All works shall be carried out and completed in 
accordance with the approved scheme, unless otherwise agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason for pre commencement condition: To ensure the appropriate 
identification, recording and publication of archaeological and historic 
remains affected by the development. This information is required before 
development commences to ensure that historic remains are not damaged 
during the construction process.

4) Pre-Commencement condition: - No development (including ground works) 
or vegetation clearance works shall take place until a Construction Method 
Statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The Statement shall provide for:
a) The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors.
b) Loading and unloading of plant and materials.
c) Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development.
d) The erection and maintenance of securing hoarding, if appropriate, which 
shall be kept clear of graffiti and fly-posting. 
e) Wheel washing facilities.
f) Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction. 
g) A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from construction 
works, with priority given to reuse of building materials on site wherever 
practicable.
h) No burning on site during construction or site preparation works
i) Measures to minimise noise and vibration nuisance to neighbours from 
plant and machinery.
j) No driven piling without prior consent from the LPA.
k) Construction working hours and deliveries from 8:00 to 18:00 Monday to 
Friday, 8:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays and at no time on Sundays or Bank 
Holidays.
The approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction 
period of the development.
Reason for pre-commencement condition: In the interest of the 
environment of the site and surrounding areas. This information is required 
before development commences to ensure that the impacts of the 
development works are properly considered and addressed at the earliest 

Page 12



possible stage.

5) In the event of failure of any trees or shrubs, planted in accordance with 
any scheme approved by the Local Planning Authority, to become 
established and to prosper for a period of five years from the date of the 
completion of implementation of that scheme, such trees or shrubs shall be 
replaced with such live specimens of such species of such size and in such 
number as may be approved by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To safeguard the rights of control by the Local Planning Authority 
in these respects and in the interests of amenity.

 6) The building hereby approved shall not be brought into use until the 
landscaping has been completed in accordance with the approved plans 
and a schedule of landscape maintenance for a minimum period of 5 years 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Thereafter the approved maintenance schedule shall be adhered 
to.
Reason: - In the interests of the visual amenity of area and to ensure 
appropriate maintenance measures are implemented to secure the 
longevity of the implemented landscaping scheme.

 7) No part of the development hereby approved shall be brought into its 
intended use until the vehicular parking, on-site turning area, vehicular and 
pedestrian access points onto Ribston Avenue as indicated "Drawing 
Number CYG-PHS-XX-ZZ-DR-A-90-004 Rev P6" has been provided in 
accordance with details that shall have been submitted to, and approved in 
writing by, the Local Planning Authority.             
Reason: To ensure that a safe and suitable access is achieved, in 
accordance with paragraph 108 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

 8) No part of the development hereby approved shall be brought into its 
intended use until details of the pedestrian/cycle access to the adjacent 
residential site (to the south of Ribston Avenue) have been approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority and the pedestrian/cycle access has 
been provided, surfaced and marked out in accordance with the approved 
plans. Thereafter the said access shall be retained for those purposes at all 
times.
Reason:  To provide a safe and suitable access for pedestrians and 
cyclists in accordance with Paragraphs 108 and 110 of the NPPF and CP9 
of the ECC Core Strategy

 9) Prior to the development hereby approved being brought into use secure 
cycle parking provision and staff changing facilities to serve the 
development shall be provided and made available for use in accordance 
with details that shall previously have been submitted to, and approved in 
writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the said facilities shall 
be maintained at all times for the intended purpose.
Reason: To provide adequate facilities for sustainable transport.

10) No development shall take place until adequate areas have been made 
available within the site to accommodate operatives' vehicles, construction 
plant and materials and a Construction Method Statement has been 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The 
statement should include details of access arrangements, measures to 
minimise the impact on the adjacent footpath and timings of the proposed 
works. The approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the 

Page 13



construction period. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and public amenity

11) A comprehensive Travel Plan in line with the proposals mentioned in the 
submitted Travel Plan Statement (June 2018) and Car Park Management 
Plan for the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority in advance of occupation of the development. The 
Travel Plan measures and Car Park Management Plan shall thereafter will 
be implemented in accordance with the approved details. A review of travel 
patterns for the site shall be undertaken within 6 months of occupation of 
the development and updated on a basis as agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority as part of the Travel Plan thereafter.
Reason: To ensure that the development promotes all travel modes to 
reduce reliance on the private car, in accordance with paragraph 111 of the 
NPPF.

12) Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority, development 
other than that required to be carried out as part of an approved scheme of 
remediation must not commence until Parts 1 and 2 below have been 
complied with. If unexpected contamination is found after development has 
begun, development must be halted on that part of the site affected by the 
unexpected contamination to the extent specified by the Local Planning 
Authority in writing until Part 3 has been complied with in relation to that 
contamination.

1. Submission of Remediation Scheme
A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for 
the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, 
buildings and other property and the natural and historical environment 
must be prepared, and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local 
Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken, 
proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of 
works and site management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the 
site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the 
land after remediation.

2. Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme
The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with 
its terms prior to the commencement of development other than that 
required to carry out remediation, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The Local Planning Authority must be given two 
weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme 
works.

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the 
remediation carried out must be produced, and is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority.

3. Reporting of Unexpected Contamination
In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the 
approved development that was not previously identified it must be reported 
in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and 
risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance, and where remediation 
is necessary an updated remediation scheme must be prepared in 

Page 14



accordance with the requirements of part 1, both of which are subject to the 
approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.
Following completion of measures identified in the approved updated 
remediation scheme a verification report must be prepared, which is subject 
to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with 
Part 2.

Parts 1, 2 and 3 must all be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the 
Environment Agency's 'Model Procedures for the Management of Land 
Contamination, CLR 11'.
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the occupants of the building 
hereby approved. This information is required before development 
commences to ensure that any remedial works are properly considered and 
addressed at the appropriate stage.

13) Prior to the commencement of the use hereby permitted, the kitchen 
ventilation system for the unit shall be installed in accordance with details 
previously submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The details shall include drawings of the location and design of 
the system, and information on how odour emissions shall be controlled, 
including abatement if necessary, and how the system shall be maintained 
to ensure it does not adversely affect the amenity of surrounding uses. The 
applicant should be advised that further guidance on the required 
information is available in annex B of the DEFRA document 'Guidance on 
the Control of Odour and Noise from Commercial Kitchen Exhaust 
Systems'. 
Reason: - In the interests of protecting the residential amenity of the 
occupants of surrounding properties.

14) Noise levels at the boundaries of the site associated with plant forming part 
of the development hereby approved shall not exceed the limits specified in 
Figure 1 attached to the WSP memo dated 21st September 2018 ref WSP-
APM001 submitted in support of the application.
Reason - To protect the residential amenity of the occupants of surrounding 
properties.

15) Prior to the development hereby approved being brought into use boundary 
treatments to all 4 external boundaries of the site, and between the hospital 
and the open space, shall be erected in accordance with further detailed 
specifications that shall previously have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The detailed specifications shall be 
based on the boundary treatments specified on the approved landscaping 
plans, and in the Design and Access Statement by Land Studio dated 
February 2019, and comprise detailed specifications (including construction 
specifications) for each boundary. Thereafter the said boundary treatments 
shall be maintained at all times.
Reason - In the interests of the visual amenities of the area, and the 
security of the site.

16) Samples of the materials it is intended to use externally in the construction 
of the development shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority. No 
external finishing material shall be used until the Local Planning Authority 
has confirmed in writing that its use is acceptable. Thereafter the materials 
used in the construction of the development shall correspond with the 
approved samples in all respects.
Reason: To ensure that the materials conform with the visual amenity 

Page 15



requirements of the area.

17) The detailed design of the proposed surface water drainage scheme to 
serve the site, including the associated maintenance and management 
arrangements, shall be submitted to and be approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority prior to the installation of the said drainage 
facilities. Thereafter the drainage shall be implemented and managed and 
maintained in accordance with the approved details. Those details shall 
include:
a) a timetable for its implementation, and 
b) a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development 
which shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public body or 
statutory undertaker, or any other arrangements to secure the operation of 
the sustainable urban drainage scheme throughout its lifetime.
Reason: To ensure the satisfactory drainage of the development. This 
information is required before development commences to ensure that any 
drainage scheme is properly designed and implemented at the appropriate 
stage.

18) Prior to occupation of the building hereby approved a Wildlife Plan which 
demonstrates how the proposed development has been designed to 
enhance the ecological interest of the site, and how it will be managed in 
perpetuity to enhance wildlife, has been submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be carried out 
and managed strictly in accordance with the approved measures and 
provisions of the Wildlife Plan. 
Reason: In the interests of protecting and improving existing, and creating 
new wildlife habitats in the area.

In the event that the Section 106 Agreement is not completed within six months of 
the date of this committee meeting, the City Development Manager be authorised 
to REFUSE permission for the reason that inadequate provision has been made for 
the matters which were intended to be dealt with in the Section 106 Agreement.

(In accordance with Standing Order No.43, the Councillors indicated that their 
voting in respect of the recommendations be recorded as follows:-
Those voting in favour : Councillors Bialyk, Branston, Harvey, Lyons, Morse, 
Sheldon and Vizard,
Those voting against : Councillors Mrs Henson and Mrs Thompson) 

Councillor Prowse left the meeting at this point.

24 PLANNING APPLICATION NO. 18/1053/FUL - ALPHIN HOUSE, MILL LANE, 
EXETER

The Project Manager (Planning) (ZN) presented the application for the change of 
use of former care home to provide 19 residential units, partial demolition and 
redevelopment of a two storey side extension, associated car and cycle parking, 
private amenity space and public footpath. The presentation was a joint one 
covering application 18/1275/FUL (Min. No. 25 below).

Councillor Warwick, having given notice under Standing Order No. 44, spoke on 
both applications. He raised the following points:-

 change from 55 plus residence is regrettable;
 an independent report would have been preferable given the County 

Page 16



Council’s ownership of the site;
 Mill Lane is the old country lane from Alphington Village starting as a 

footway/cycleway only from Ide Lane to Mill House and then shared with 
vehicles to the junction with Mandrake Road. The footpath is used not only 
by children of the primary school and West Exe School but the residents of 
the housing estates in Alphington to get to Marsh Barton and St Thomas;

 the travel plan is not necessarily a solution to road safety and traffic issues 
as encouraging further cycle and walking use will also increase conflict with 
vehicles. The footpath starting at Ide Lane funnels pedestrians into Mill 
Lane and vehicular traffic and pedestrians cannot pass at the same time on 
the bridge over Alphinbrook near the junction with Mandrake Road. There is 
a vital need for a safe footway if planning permission is granted, for 
example, establish one through the local playing fields;

 additional traffic will be generated by the development which, allied to 
parents parking along Mill Lane to drop off and pick up children from the 
primary school as well as children walking to this school and West Exe, 
refutes the County Council claim that the situation is not dissimilar to that of 
other schools in the city;

 a road management scheme is required to restrict access to residents and 
visitors only at certain times of the day, that is, when pupils are entering 
and leaving the primary school; and

 the main issue is the safety of school children and because of the problem 
of speeding traffic a speed limit should be enforced which will also help
ensure safe access and egress to the development site.

He responded as follows to Members’ queries:-

 became aware of the change from a 55 plus residence when the second 
application was submitted; and

 traffic and parking enforcement had been suggested by the residents 
although recognise limited enforcement resources.

The Highways Development Management Officer advised that shared space 
helped minimise traffic speed in accordance with the Manual for Streets. Although 
school children did come to school close to the peak am traffic flow, they left 
outside the peak pm flow and therefore the two would not meet. The applicant had 
agreed to provide a pedestrian footpath adjacent to Mill Lane, on land within the 
applicant’s control. With regard to restricting access to residents and visitors only, 
this would be difficult to enforce unless cameras were installed and which, in any 
case, the County Council could not maintain. Mill Lane was the subject of a 20mph 
speed limit.

Juliet Meadowcroft spoke against both applications. She raised the following 
points:-

 speaking on behalf of the residents of Mill Lane and Mandrake Close, as 
well as the parents of school children. The Alphington Village Forum 
objects to the over-development of Alphin House which will create 22 new 
units with a total of 46 bedrooms and thus potentially 50 to 60 new 
residents, possibly owning at least 80 cars with only 22 parking spaces;

 for the reason of children’s safety alone, the Forum recommends that the 
application should be deferred until an independent transport report is 
obtained;

 nowhere in Mill Lane to park or anywhere else;
 potential conflict of interest with Devon County Council selling the property 

for profit and apparently oblivious of the dangers imposed by extra traffic on 

Page 17



a narrow countryside lane;
 conditions requiring safe and suitable access to the site have not been met 

in the County Council’s Highways Report, which ignores the safety of 
numerous pedestrians and cyclists using Mill Lane twice daily and the 
impact of more congestion on Church Road and Alphington Road, 
especially at the junction near Sainsbury’s;

 the development does not meet the requirement within the Highways 
Chapter of the National Policy Planning Framework. The framework states 
that applications for development should give priority first to pedestrians 
and cyclists, but also address the needs of people with disabilities and 
reduced mobility in relation to all modes of transport. It also states that 
development should create places that are safe, secure and attractive 
minimising the scope for conflicts between pedestrians, cyclists and 
vehicles, avoid unnecessary street clutter and respond to local character 
and design standards; 

 the development will spoil a pleasant rural lane enjoyed by numerous 
residents, turning it into a dangerous and busy highway, yet without a path 
that runs the whole length of the road;

 developer has not provided a pavement from Alphin House to the end of 
Mill Lane;

 fails to meet the objectives of the Manual for Streets;
 estimate of new traffic is not realistic as it should not base the estimated 

numbers on the former use as a care home as opposed to the likelihood of 
up to possibly 50 or so new residents trying to go to work in the morning 
peak hour by car or bicycle just at the time the children are going to school. 
The report states that the traffic will double which does not tally with a 
residents’ survey;

 concerns in particular about the safety of all children who walk and cycle;
 recommend that this development is limited to older people who will not be 

as likely to each own a car and want to drive to work at peak times. The 55 
plus age limit should not have been removed; and

 lack of transparency over the whole development.

Mr Burgess spoke in support of both applications. He raised the following points:-

 applicant is passionate about converting redundant buildings to promote 
high quality and radical accommodation which blends into the local 
environment;

 use of distinctive materials including brick and tiled pitched roof;
 the design is sensitive to the surrounding area and sense of community and 

green space will surround the development;
 providing improved vehicular access and a new footpath to be provided 

along edge of Mill Lane; and
 protection of trees.

Concerns relating to material planning considerations had been addressed through 
revisions to the scheme, conditions on the decision notice and a Section 106 
Agreement. For all the reasons considered and weighing up the development plan 
policies and proposals, and other material considerations, it was considered that 
the proposal would be appropriate. 

Members did not feel that the increase in traffic movement would be a severe 
enough impact on the highway network to warrant a refusal of the scheme.

Page 18



The recommendation was for approval, subject to the conditions and signing of a 
Section 106 Agreement as set out in the report.

RESOLVED that, subject to the completion of a Section 106 Agreement under the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to secure pedestrian footpath, a 
Management Scheme, and Affordable Housing, planning permission for the 
change of use of former care home to provide 19 residential units, partial 
demolition and re-development of a two storey side extension, associated car and 
cycle parking, private amenity space and public footpath be APPROVED, subject 
also to the following conditions:-

1) The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later 
than the expiration of three years beginning with the date on which this 
permission is granted.
Reason:  To ensure compliance with sections 91 and 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990.

2) The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than 
in strict accordance with the submitted details received by the Local 
Planning Authority on  25th February 2019 (including dwg. nos. 17447 SD, 
DTS18.28.1.TPP, (0) 001, 002, 003, 004, 005, 01 F, 02E, 50E, 60B, 10C, 
51B, 03 D, 10, 11, 20 ) as modified by other conditions of this consent.
Reason: In order to ensure compliance with the approved drawings.

3) Prior to above ground works, samples of the materials it is intended to use 
externally in the construction of the development shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Wherever possible 
external doors and accessible windows should comply with the Secured by 
Design (SBD) standards as set out in Secured by Design Homes 2016. No 
external finishing material shall be used until the Local Planning Authority 
has confirmed in writing that its use is acceptable. Thereafter the materials 
used in the construction of the development shall correspond with the 
approved samples in all respects.
Reason: To ensure that the materials conform with the visual amenity 
requirements of the area and to reduce the fear of and opportunities for 
crime.

4) No materials shall be brought onto the site or any development 
commenced, until the developer has erected tree protective fencing around 
all trees or shrubs to be retained, in accordance with a plan that shall 
previously have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. This plan shall be produced in accordance with BS 
5837:2012 Trees in Relation to design, demolition and construction. The 
developer shall maintain such fences to the satisfaction of the Local 
Planning Authority until all development the subject of this permission is 
completed.  The level of the land within the fenced areas shall not be 
altered without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority. No 
materials shall be stored within the fenced area, nor shall trenches for 
service runs or any other excavations take place within the fenced area 
except by written permission of the Local Planning Authority. Where such 
permission is granted, soil shall be removed manually, without powered 
equipment.  
Reason: To ensure the protection of the trees during the carrying out of the 
development.

5) Pre-commencement condition: The demolition of the existing dwelling on 

Page 19



site with a bat roost as identified in the Bat & Protected Species Survey, Bat 
Emergence Survey shall not in any circumstances commence unless the 
Local Planning Authority has been provided with either: A copy of the 
relevant wildlife licence issued by Natural England authorising the 
demolition of the building and destruction of the roost; or, A statement in 
writing from Natural England to the effect that it does not consider that 
demolition of the building will require a licence.
Reason for pre commencement condition: To ensure that no bat roost is 
damaged or destroyed without the appropriate licence being obtained in 
accordance with the Conservation of Habitat and Species Regulations 2010 
as amended. These details are required pre commencement as specified to 
ensure that bats are not killed or otherwise harmed by building operations.

6) Pre commencement condition: No works on the demolition of the existing 
dwelling on site shall commence until details of the replacement bat roost 
provisions have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The details shall include the type of roost provisions and 
their location on the site. Demolition works shall not commence until the bat 
roost provision designed to compensate for the loss of the existing roost 
has been provided on site as approved. The bat roost provisions designed 
to provide an enhancement on site shall be provided as approved. 
Reason for pre-commencement condition: In the interests of biodiversity 
and to accord with the recommendations of the Bat and Protected Species 
Survey, and Bat Emergence Survey. These details are required pre-
commencement as specified to ensure that they provide satisfactory 
compensation for the loss of the existing roost and enhancement in 
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework.

7) No individual dwelling hereby approved shall be brought into its intended 
use until secure cycle parking facilities for residents have been provided in 
accordance with details that have been approved by the Local Planning 
Authority as part of this permission. Thereafter the said cycle parking 
facilities shall be retained for that purpose at all times.
Reason: To ensure that cycle parking is provided, in accordance with 
Exeter Local Plan Policy T3.

8) Pre-commencement condition: Prior to commencement a detailed 
assessment of the condition of the existing surface water drainage system 
must be undertaken,  the results of which must be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in consultation with 
Devon County Council as the Lead Local Flood Authority. Where the 
assessment shows that works are required to be undertaken to the existing 
surface water drainage network, a schedule of works must be submitted to 
the LPA with a timetable for implementation. On completion of the repair 
works, a verification report must be submitted and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority, in consultation with Devon County Council as 
the Lead Local Flood Authority, prior to occupation
Reason for pre-commencement condition: To ensure that the existing 
surface water drainage system is of a satisfactory condition to continue 
receiving surface water runoff generated from the proposed development.

9) If, during demolition/ development, contamination not previously identified is 
found to be present at the site then the Local Authority shall be notified as 
soon as practicable and no further development (unless otherwise agreed 
in writing with the Local Planning Authority), shall be carried out until the 
developer has submitted an investigation and risk assessment, and where 

Page 20



necessary a remediation strategy and verification plan, detailing how this 
unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with. Prior to occupation of any 
part of the development, a verification report demonstrating completion of 
the works set out in the approved remediation strategy, shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

10) Pre-commencement condition: Details of gas protection measures should 
be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
The building(s) shall not be occupied until the approved measures have 
been implemented and this has been confirmed with the Local Planning 
Authority.
Reason for pre-commencement condition: In the interest of the public 
safety and amenity.

11) Pre-commencement condition: No development (including ground works) or 
vegetation clearance works shall take place until a Demolition Construction 
Environmental Method Statement has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Statement shall provide for and 
not be limited to:

a) The site access point(s) of all vehicles to the site during the 
construction phase.

b) The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors.
c) The areas for loading and unloading plant and materials.
d) Storage areas of plant and materials used in constructing the 

development.
e) The erection and maintenance of securing hoarding, if appropriate. 
f) Wheel washing facilities.
g) Measures to control the emission of dust/dirt during construction. 
h) The CEMPs should contain a procedure for handling and 

investigating complaints as well as provision for regular meetings 
with appropriate representatives from the Local Authorities during 
the development works, in order to discuss forthcoming work and its 
environmental impact.

i) No burning on site during construction or site preparation works.
j) Measures to minimise noise nuisance to neighbours from plant and 

machinery.
k) Construction working hours from 8:00 to 18:00 Monday to Friday, 

8:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays and at no time on Sundays or Bank 
Holidays.

l) Construction traffic and deliveries must avoid school drop off/pick up 
hours

m) No driven piling without prior consent from the LPA.

The approved Statement shall be strictly adhered to throughout the 
construction period of the development.
Reason for pre-commencement condition: In the interest of the public 
amenity, highway safety, the environment of the site and surrounding 
areas.

12) Pre-commencement condition: Prior to the commencement of the 
development hereby permitted, a Waste Audit Statement shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This statement 
shall include all information outlined in the waste audit template provided in 
Devon County Council’s Waste Management and Infrastructure 
Supplementary Planning Document. The development shall be carried out 

Page 21



in accordance with the approved statement.
Reason for pre-commencement condition: To minimise the amount of 
waste produced and promote sustainable methods of waste management 
in accordance with Policy W4 of the Devon Waste Plan and the Waste 
Management and Infrastructure Supplementary Planning Document. These 
details are required pre-commencement as specified to ensure that waste 
generated during construction is managed sustainably

13) Prior to occupation, the vehicular access, on site turning areas and 
vehicular parking spaces as indicated on Drawing Number 17447 Rev E, 
must be implemented for 19 cars to be parked and for vehicles to turn, so 
that they may enter and leave the site in forward gear, in accordance with 
details that have been submitted as part of this application, and thereafter 
retained and maintained for that purpose unless otherwise agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To provide adequate visibility to achieve a safe and suitable 
access, in accordance with paragraph 108 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework.

14) Prior to occupation of the development, details of secure cycle parking 
provision and bin stores which show how the proposal responds to Secure 
by Design principles shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The cycle parking and bin stores shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details and thereafter 
retained and maintained unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.
Reason: To provide adequate facilities for sustainable transport and to 
reduce the fear of and opportunities for crime.

15) Pre-commencement condition: Prior to commencement details of the 
proposed footway adjacent to the site and visibility splays for the cycle 
access as indicated on the Drawing Number 17447 Rev E, have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason for pre-commencement condition: To provide a safe and suitable 
access in accordance with paragraphs 108 and 110 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework and policy CP9 of the ECC Core Strategy

16) Prior to occupation a Framework Travel Plan shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Travel Plan shall 
include details of a 'travel pack' which will be produced for each dwelling, 
providing information of walking and cycling routes and facilities, and public 
transport routes and timetables, car sharing schemes, and the location of 
local and central shopping and leisure facilities. The approved travel plan 
measures must be implemented to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority. A review of travel patterns for the site shall be undertaken within 
6 months of occupation of the development and updated on a basis as 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority thereafter.
Reason: To ensure that the development promotes all travel modes to 
reduce reliance on the private car, in accordance with paragraphs 111 and 
105 of the NPPF

17) Prior to occupation, above ground works, a detailed scheme for 
landscaping, including the planting of trees and or shrubs, the use of 
surface materials and boundary screen walls and fences shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing. Such scheme shall 
specify materials, species, tree and plant sizes, numbers and planting 

Page 22



densities, and any earthworks required together with the timing of the 
implementation of the scheme.  Furthermore, the scheme shall show how it 
accords with Secure by Design Principles, in particular with regard to 
boundary screen walls and fences. The landscaping shall thereafter be 
implemented in accordance with the approved scheme and programme.
Reason: To safeguard the rights of control by the Local Planning Authority 
in these respects and in the interests of safety and amenity and reducing 
the fear of and opportunities for crime.

18) Prior to occupation, details of external lighting on the site and on the 
building hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority (including location, type and specification). The 
details shall demonstrate how the lighting has been designed to minimise 
impacts on local amenity and wildlife (including isoline drawings of lighting 
levels and mitigation if necessary). The lighting shall be installed in 
accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To ensure lighting is well designed to reduce the fear of and 
opportunities for crime and protect the amenities of the area and wildlife.

Informatives

1. In accordance with Chapters 1 and 2 of the Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2017, this development has been screened in respect of 
the need for an Appropriate Assessment (AA). Given the nature of the 
development, it has been concluded that an AA is required in relation to 
potential impact on the relevant Special Protection Area (SPA), the Exe 
Estuary, which is a designated European site. This AA has been carried out 
and concludes that the development is such that it could have an impact 
primarily associated with recreational activity of future occupants of the 
development. This impact will be mitigated in line with the South East Devon 
European Site Mitigation Strategy prepared by Footprint Ecology on behalf of 
East Devon and Teignbridge District Councils and Exeter City Council (with 
particular reference to Table 26), which is being funded through a proportion 
of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) collected in respect of the 
development being allocated to funding the mitigation strategy. Or, if the 
development is not liable to pay CIL, to pay the appropriate habitats 
mitigation contribution through another mechanism (this is likely to be either 
an undertaking in accordance with Section 111 of the Local Government Act 
1972 or a Unilateral Undertaking).

2. A legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 relates to this planning permission.

3. The Local Planning Authority considers that this development will be CIL 
(Community Infrastructure Levy) liable. Payment will become due following 
commencement of development. Accordingly your attention is drawn to the 
need to complete and submit an 'Assumption of Liability' notice to the Local 
Planning Authority as soon as possible. A copy is available on the Exeter City 
Council website. It is also drawn to your attention that where a chargeable 
development is commenced before the Local Authority has received a valid 
commencement notice (ie where pre-commencement conditions have not 
been discharged) the Local Authority may impose a surcharge, and the ability 
to claim any form of relief from the payment of the Levy will be foregone.  You 
must apply for any relief and receive confirmation from the Council before 
commencing development.  For further information please see 
www.exeter.gov.uk/cil.

Page 23



25 PLANNING APPLICATION NO. 18/1275/FUL - ALPHIN HOUSE, MILL LANE, 
EXETER

The Project Manager (Planning) (ZN) presented the application for the change of 
use of former care home to provide 19 residential units, partial demolition and 
redevelopment of a two storey side extension, construction of three terraced 
houses, associated car and cycle parking, private amenity space and public 
footpath. The presentation was a joint one covering application 18/1053/FUL (Min. 
No. 24 above).

Councillor Warwick, having given notice under Standing Order No. 44, spoke on 
the item as did Juliet Meadowcroft as an objector and Philp Burgess as a 
supporter. Their views are set out in Min. No. 24 above.

Responding to the views expressed by the speakers, the Highways Development 
Management Officer advised that shared space helped minimise traffic speed in 
accordance with the Manual for Streets. Although school children did come to 
school close to the peak am traffic flow, they left outside the peak pm flow and 
therefore the two would not meet. The applicant had agreed to provide a 
pedestrian footpath adjacent to Mill Lane, on land within the applicant’s control. 
With regard to restricting access to residents and visitors only, this would be 
difficult to enforce unless cameras were installed and which, in any case, the 
County Council could not maintain. Mill Lane was the subject of a 20mph speed 
limit.

With regard to concerns relating to material planning considerations it was noted 
that these had been addressed through revisions to the scheme, conditions on the 
decision notice and a Section 106 Agreement. For all the reasons considered and 
weighing up the development plan policies and proposals, and other material 
considerations, it was considered that the proposal would be appropriate. 

Members did not feel that the increase in traffic movement would be a severe 
enough impact on the highway network to warrant a refusal of the scheme.

The recommendation was for approval, subject to the conditions and signing of a 
Section 106 Agreement as set out in the report.

RESOLVED that, subject to completion of a Section 106 Agreement under the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to secure pedestrian footpath, a 
Management Scheme, and Affordable Housing planning permission for the change 
of use of former care home to provide 19 residential units, partial demolition and 
redevelopment of a two storey side extension, construction of three terraced 
houses, associated car and cycle parking, private amenity space and public 
footpath be APPROVED, subject also to the following conditions:-

 1) The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later 
than the expiration of three years beginning with the date on which this 
permission is granted.
Reason:  To ensure compliance with sections 91 and 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990.

 2) The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than 
in strict accordance with the submitted details received by the Local 
Planning Authority on  25th February 2019 (including dwg. nos. 17447 SD, 

Page 24



DTS18. 28.1.TPP, (0) 001, 002, 003, 004, 005, 01 F, 02E, 50E, 51B, 10C, 
60B, 03 D, 10, 11, 20 ) as modified by other conditions of this consent.
Reason: In order to ensure compliance with the approved drawings.

 3) Prior to above ground works, samples of the materials it is intended to use 
externally in the construction of the development shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Wherever possible 
external doors and accessible windows should comply with the Secured by 
Design (SBD) standards as set out in Secured by Design Homes 2016. No 
external finishing material shall be used until the Local Planning Authority 
has confirmed in writing that its use is acceptable. Thereafter the materials 
used in the construction of the development shall correspond with the 
approved samples in all respects.
Reason: To ensure that the materials conform with the visual amenity 
requirements of the area and to reduce the fear of and opportunities for 
crime.

 4) No materials shall be brought onto the site or any development 
commenced, until the developer has erected tree protective fencing around 
all trees or shrubs to be retained, in accordance with a plan that shall 
previously have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. This plan shall be produced in accordance with BS 
5837:2012 Trees in Relation to design, demolition and construction. The 
developer shall maintain such fences to the satisfaction of the Local 
Planning Authority until all development the subject of this permission is 
completed.  The level of the land within the fenced areas shall not be 
altered without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority. No 
materials shall be stored within the fenced area, nor shall trenches for 
service runs or any other excavations take place within the fenced area 
except by written permission of the Local Planning Authority. Where such 
permission is granted, soil shall be removed manually, without powered 
equipment.  
Reason: To ensure the protection of the trees during the carrying out of the 
development.

 5) Pre-commencement condition: The demolition of the existing dwelling on 
site with a bat roost as identified in the Bat & Protected Species Survey, Bat 
Emergence Survey shall not in any circumstances commence unless the 
Local Planning Authority has been provided with either: A copy of the 
relevant wildlife licence issued by Natural England authorising the 
demolition of the building and destruction of the roost; or,  A statement in 
writing from Natural England to the effect that it does not consider that 
demolition of the building will require a licence.
Reason for pre commencement condition: To ensure that no bat roost is 
damaged or destroyed without the appropriate licence being obtained in 
accordance with the Conservation of Habitat and Species Regulations 2010 
as amended. These details are required pre commencement as specified to 
ensure that bats are not killed or otherwise harmed by building operations.

 6) Pre commencement condition: No works on the demolition of the existing 
dwelling on site shall commence until details of the replacement bat roost 
provisions have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The details shall include the type of roost provisions and 
their location on the site. Demolition works shall not commence until the bat 
roost provision designed to compensate for the loss of the existing roost 
has been provided on site as approved. The bat roost provisions designed 

Page 25



to provide an enhancement on site shall be provided as approved. 
Reason for pre-commencement condition: In the interests of biodiversity 
and to accord with the recommendations of the Bat and Protected Species 
Survey, and Bat Emergence Survey. These details are required pre-
commencement as specified to ensure that they provide satisfactory 
compensation for the loss of the existing roost and enhancement in 
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework.

 7) No individual dwelling hereby approved shall be brought into its intended 
use until secure cycle parking facilities for residents have been provided in 
accordance with details that have been approved by the Local Planning 
Authority as part of this permission. Thereafter the said cycle parking 
facilities shall be retained for that purpose at all times.
Reason: To ensure that cycle parking is provided, in accordance with 
Exeter Local Plan Policy T3.

 8) Pre-commencement condition: Prior to commencement a detailed 
assessment of the condition of the existing surface water drainage system 
must be undertaken,  the results of which must be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in consultation with 
Devon County Council as the Lead Local Flood Authority. Where the 
assessment shows that works are required to be undertaken to the existing 
surface water drainage network, a schedule of works must be submitted to 
the LPA with a timetable for implementation. On completion of the repair 
works, a verification report must be submitted and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority, in consultation with Devon County Council as 
the Lead Local Flood Authority, prior to occupation.
Reason for pre-commencement condition: To ensure that the existing 
surface water drainage system is of a satisfactory condition to continue 
receiving surface water runoff generated from the proposed development.

9) If, during demolition/ development, contamination not previously identified is 
found to be present at the site then the Local Authority shall be notified as 
soon as practicable and no further development (unless otherwise agreed 
in writing with the Local Planning Authority), shall be carried out until the 
developer has submitted an investigation and risk assessment, and where 
necessary a remediation strategy and verification plan, detailing how this 
unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with. Prior to occupation of any 
part of the development, a verification report demonstrating completion of 
the works set out in the approved remediation strategy, shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

10) Pre-commencement condition: Details of gas protection measures should 
be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
The building(s) shall not be occupied until the approved measures have 
been implemented and this has been confirmed with the Local Planning 
Authority.
Reason for pre-commencement condition: In the interest of the public 
safety and amenity.

11) Pre-commencement condition: No development (including ground works) or 
vegetation clearance works shall take place until a Demolition Construction 
Environmental Method Statement has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Statement shall provide for and 
not be limited to:

Page 26



a) The site access point(s) of all vehicles to the site during the 
construction phase.

b) The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors.
c) The areas for loading and unloading plant and materials.
d) Storage areas of plant and materials used in constructing the 

development.
e) The erection and maintenance of securing hoarding, if appropriate. 
f) Wheel washing facilities.
g) Measures to control the emission of dust/dirt during construction. 
h) The CEMPs should contain a procedure for handling and 

investigating complaints as well as provision for regular meetings 
with appropriate representatives from the Local Authorities during 
the development works, in order to discuss forthcoming work and its 
environmental impact.

i) No burning on site during construction or site preparation works.
j) Measures to minimise noise nuisance to neighbours from plant and 

machinery.
k) Construction working hours from 8:00 to 18:00 Monday to Friday, 

8:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays and at no time on Sundays or Bank 
Holidays.

l) Construction traffic and deliveries must avoid school drop off/pick up 
hours

m) No driven piling without prior consent from the LPA.

The approved Statement shall be strictly adhered to throughout the construction 
period of the development.
Reason for pre-commencement condition: In the interest of the public amenity, 
highway safety, the environment of the site and surrounding areas.

12) Pre-commencement condition: Prior to the commencement of the 
development hereby permitted, a Waste Audit Statement shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This statement 
shall include all information outlined in the waste audit template provided in 
Devon County Council’s Waste Management and Infrastructure 
Supplementary Planning Document. The development shall be carried out 
in accordance with the approved statement.
Reason for pre-commencement condition: To minimise the amount of 
waste produced and promote sustainable methods of waste management 
in accordance with Policy W4 of the Devon Waste Plan and the Waste 
Management and Infrastructure Supplementary Planning Document. These 
details are required pre-commencement as specified to ensure that waste 
generated during construction is managed sustainably

13) Prior to occupation, the vehicular access, on site turning areas and 
vehicular parking spaces as indicated on Drawing Number 17447 Rev E, 
must be implemented for 19 cars to be parked and for vehicles to turn, so 
that they may enter and leave the site in forward gear, in accordance with 
details that have been submitted as part of this application, and thereafter 
retained and maintained for that purpose unless otherwise agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To provide adequate visibility to achieve a safe and suitable 
access, in accordance with paragraph 108 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework.

14) Prior to occupation of the development, details of secure cycle parking 
provision and bin stores which show how the proposal responds to Secure 

Page 27



by Design principles shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The cycle parking and bin stores shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details and thereafter 
retained and maintained unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.
Reason: To provide adequate facilities for sustainable transport and to 
reduce the fear of and opportunities for crime.

15) Pre-commencement condition: Prior to commencement details of the 
proposed footway adjacent to the site and visibility splays for the cycle 
access as indicated on the Drawing Number 17447 Rev E, have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason for pre-commencement condition: To provide a safe and suitable 
access in accordance with paragraphs 108 and 110 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework and policy CP9 of the ECC Core Strategy

16) Prior to occupation a Framework Travel Plan shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Travel Plan shall 
include details of a 'travel pack' which will be produced for each dwelling, 
providing information of walking and cycling routes and facilities, and public 
transport routes and timetables, car sharing schemes, and the location of 
local and central shopping and leisure facilities. The approved travel plan 
measures must be implemented to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority. A review of travel patterns for the site shall be undertaken within 
6 months of occupation of the development and updated on a basis as 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority thereafter.
Reason: To ensure that the development promotes all travel modes to 
reduce reliance on the private car, in accordance with paragraphs 111 and 
105 of the NPPF

17) Prior to occupation, above ground works, a detailed scheme for 
landscaping, including the planting of trees and or shrubs, the use of 
surface materials and boundary screen walls and fences shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing. Such scheme shall 
specify materials, species, tree and plant sizes, numbers and planting 
densities, and any earthworks required together with the timing of the 
implementation of the scheme.  Furthermore, the scheme shall show how it 
accords with Secure by Design Principles, in particular with regard to 
boundary screen walls and fences. The landscaping shall thereafter be 
implemented in accordance with the approved scheme and programme.
Reason: To safeguard the rights of control by the Local Planning Authority 
in these respects and in the interests of safety and amenity and reducing 
the fear of and opportunities for crime.

18) Prior to occupation, details of external lighting on the site and on the 
building hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority (including location, type and specification). The 
details shall demonstrate how the lighting has been designed to minimise 
impacts on local amenity and wildlife (including isoline drawings of lighting 
levels and mitigation if necessary). The lighting shall be installed in 
accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To ensure lighting is well designed to reduce the fear of and 
opportunities for crime and protect the amenities of the area and wildlife.

Informatives

Page 28



1. In accordance with Chapters 1 and 2 of the Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2017, this development has been screened in respect of 
the need for an Appropriate Assessment (AA). Given the nature of the 
development, it has been concluded that an AA is required in relation to 
potential impact on the relevant Special Protection Area (SPA), the Exe 
Estuary, which is a designated European site. This AA has been carried out 
and concludes that the development is such that it could have an impact 
primarily associated with recreational activity of future occupants of the 
development. This impact will be mitigated in line with the South East Devon 
European Site Mitigation Strategy prepared by Footprint Ecology on behalf of 
East Devon and Teignbridge District Councils and Exeter City Council (with 
particular reference to Table 26), which is being funded through a proportion 
of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) collected in respect of the 
development being allocated to funding the mitigation strategy. Or, if the 
development is not liable to pay CIL, to pay the appropriate habitats 
mitigation contribution through another mechanism (this is likely to be either 
an undertaking in accordance with Section 111 of the Local Government Act 
1972 or a Unilateral Undertaking).

2. A legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 relates to this planning permission.

3. The Local Planning Authority considers that this development will be CIL 
(Community Infrastructure Levy) liable. Payment will become due following 
commencement of development. Accordingly your attention is drawn to the 
need to complete and submit an 'Assumption of Liability' notice to the Local 
Planning Authority as soon as possible. A copy is available on the Exeter City 
Council website. It is also drawn to your attention that where a chargeable 
development is commenced before the Local Authority has received a valid 
commencement notice (ie where pre-commencement conditions have not 
been discharged) the Local Authority may impose a surcharge, and the ability 
to claim any form of relief from the payment of the Levy will be foregone.  You 
must apply for any relief and receive confirmation from the Council before 
commencing development.  For further information please see 
www.exeter.gov.uk/cil.

26 PLANNING APPLICATION NO. 18/0704/FUL - 20 COUNTESS WEAR ROAD, 
EXETER

The Assistant City Development Manager presented the application for demolition 
of existing house and annex and construction of four new houses (semi-detached) 
with associated parking and infrastructure.

Peter Vance spoke against the application. He raised the following points:-

 43 objections had been submitted from neighbours following two 
community meetings in respect of an inappropriate development; 

 contrary to Objective 9, Policies DG1 and 4, CP4 and 17, H2 and the 
Residential Design Guide and is an overdevelopment, cramming four, four-
bed houses where there is currently one house and annexe, adding a full 
storey and is monolithic and overbearing;

 the elevations rise vertically almost three metres higher than the existing 
dwelling, with flat roofs in a neighbourhood where pitch roofs are the norm. 
The design does not integrate or relate to other properties in height, shape, 
size or appearance;

 dominates views from all directions near and far and is detrimental to the 

Page 29



area’s character. There is no reference to historical context or the medieval 
core of Countess Wear, Grade 2 listed cottages metres away, and lime 
kilns;

 the design, height, boundary treatment, and window configuration create 
significant issues of loss of privacy for neighbours on all sides;

 the ground floor frontage has four garages with seven parking spaces in 
front, and no habitable rooms. Cars will dominate the street scene;

 area popular with walkers, cyclists, dog walkers, and joggers; 
 King George Playing Fields, Exe Valley cycle route, and Green Circle 

walking routes will be blighted; and 
 support recommendation to refuse. 

The recommendation was for refusal for the reasons set out in the report.

RESOLVED that planning permission for the demolition of existing house and 
annex and construction of four new houses (semi-detached) with associated 
parking and infrastructure be refused as the proposal would be contrary to 
Objective 9 and Policies CP4 and CP17 of the Exeter Core Strategy, Policies H2, 
DG1 (b), (d), (f), (g), (h and DG4 a, b, c of the Exeter Local Plan First Review and 
the Residential Design Guide SPD because:-

(a)   the proposed construction of four residential units would result in the 
overdevelopment of an inadequately proportioned site, presenting a 
cramped form of development unsympathetic with, and detrimental to, the 
character of this established residential area;

(b) the siting scale and design of the development would have a poor 
relationship with, and overbearing impact on, No. 20A Countess Wear 
Road with adverse impacts on the residential amenities of existing and 
future occupiers of the property, particularly in terms of loss of outlook and 
overshadowing in the garden area  amenity; and 

(c) by reason of its scale, height and design the proposed development would 
be overbearing, dominant and visually intrusive within and relate poorly to 
the street scene, to the detriment of the character of the area.

Informatives

1. In accordance with Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework 
the Council has worked in a positive and pro-active way with the Applicant 
and has looked for solutions to enable the grant of planning permission. 
However the proposal remains contrary to the planning policies set out in the 
reasons for refusal and was not therefore considered to be sustainable 
development.

2. In accordance with Chapters 1 and 2 of the Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2017, this development has been screened in respect of 
the need for an Appropriate Assessment (AA). Given the nature of the 
development, it has been concluded that an AA is required in relation to 
potential impact on the relevant Special Protection Areas (SPA), the Exe 
Estuary and East Devon Pebblebed Heaths, which are designated European 
sites. This AA has been carried out and concludes that the development is 
such that it could have an impact primarily associated with recreational 
activity of future occupants of the development. This impact will be mitigated 
in line with the South East Devon European Site Mitigation Strategy prepared 
by Footprint Ecology on behalf of East Devon and Teignbridge District 
Councils and Exeter City Council (with particular reference to Table 26), 

Page 30



which is being funded through a proportion of the Community Infrastructure 
Levy (CIL) collected in respect of the development being allocated to funding 
the mitigation strategy. Or, if the development is not liable to pay CIL, to pay 
the appropriate habitats mitigation contribution through another mechanism 
(this is likely to be either an undertaking in accordance with s111 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 or a Unilateral Undertaking).

27 PLANNING APPLICATION NO. 18/0707/FUL - 20 COUNTESS WEAR ROAD, 
EXETER

The Assistant City Development Manager presented the application for the 
construction of detached dwelling with associated parking and infrastructure on 
land to rear of 20 Countess Wear Road.

Vanessa Skelding spoke against the application. She raised the following points:-

 47 objections had been received including immediate neighbours and from 
all over Exeter, including the Exeter Civic Society; 

 proposal goes against Policy CP4, 7, HG1 and DG4. The development 
does not fit in with the variety of existing housing types and does not 
demonstrate a high standard of sustainable design and was out of 
character with the Old Countess Wear village;  

 the siting, scale and design of the development would have a poor 
relationship with, and overbearing impact on, Mill Road, with adverse 
impacts on the residential amenities particularly overlooking, loss of privacy 
and light from neighbours on all sides;

 volume and block-shape of this proposal is not in keeping with the adjoining 
buildings, with their pitched roofs; and the surrounding townscape. Use of 
materials would not relate to the palette in the locality; 

 not in keeping with this historic area of Exeter distinctive with its lime kilns, 
listed thatched cottages, the paper mill and historic wharf; and

 ill-considered, oversized, disproportionate luxury home.

The recommendation was for refusal for the reasons set out in the report.

RESOLVED that planning permission for construction of detached dwelling with 
associated parking and infrastructure on land to rear of 20 Countess Wear Road 
be refused as the proposal would be contrary to Objective 9 and Policies CP4 and 
CP17 of the Exeter Core Strategy, Policies H2, DG1 and DG4 of the Exeter Local 
Plan First Review and the Residential Design Guide SPD because the siting scale 
and design of the development would have a poor relationship with, and 
overbearing impact on, No. 28 Mill Road with adverse impacts on the residential 
amenities of existing and future occupiers of the property, particularly in terms of 
loss of outlook and overshadowing in the garden area

Informatives

1. In accordance with Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework 
the Council has worked in a positive and pro-active way with the Applicant 
and has looked for solutions to enable the grant of planning permission. 
However the proposal remains contrary to the planning policies set out in the 
reasons for refusal and was not therefore considered to be sustainable 
development.

2. In accordance with Chapters 1 and 2 of the Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2017, this development has been screened in respect of 

Page 31



the need for an Appropriate Assessment (AA). Given the nature of the 
development, it has been concluded that an AA is required in relation to 
potential impact on the relevant Special Protection Areas (SPA), the Exe 
Estuary and East Devon Pebblebed Heaths, which are designated European 
sites. This AA has been carried out and concludes that the development is 
such that it could have an impact primarily associated with recreational 
activity of future occupants of the development. This impact will be mitigated 
in line with the South East Devon European Site Mitigation Strategy prepared 
by Footprint Ecology on behalf of East Devon and Teignbridge District 
Councils and Exeter City Council (with particular reference to Table 26), 
which is being funded through a proportion of the Community Infrastructure 
Levy (CIL) collected in respect of the development being allocated to funding 
the mitigation strategy. Or, if the development is not liable to pay CIL, to pay 
the appropriate habitats mitigation contribution through another mechanism 
(this is likely to be either an undertaking in accordance with s111 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 or a Unilateral Undertaking).

28 LIST OF DECISIONS MADE AND WITHDRAWN APPLICATIONS

The report of the City Development Manager was submitted.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

29 APPEALS REPORT

The schedule of appeal decisions and appeals lodged was submitted.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

30 SITE INSPECTION PARTY

RESOLVED that the next Site Inspection Party will be held on Tuesday 7 May at 
9.30, Councillors to be advised of participants.

31 COUNCILLOR PETER EDWARDS

The Chair stated that this would be the last Planning Committee for Councillor 
Peter Edwards, who was to retire as a Councillor at the May Elections. She 
thanked him for his service to the Committee over many years. She and Members 
wished him well for the future.
 

(The meeting commenced at 5.30 pm and closed at 9.06 pm)

Chair

Page 32



COMMITTEE DATE: 24/06/2019

APPLICATION NO: 18/1120/OUT
APPLICANT: Mr Cork
PROPOSAL: Outline planning permission for development of site to provide 

7 residential units (3 open market and 4 self-build plots) with 
access from Newcourt Road (Appearance, Landscaping, 
Layout and Scale all reserved for subsequent approval)

LOCATION: Land adjoining 46 Newcourt Road
Topsham

REGISTRATION DATE: 03.08.18

SITE HISTORY

There is no relevant planning history relating directly to this site. However, the following 
application relating to a nearby site is considered relevant to the consideration of housing 
proposals within the ‘Topsham Gap’. – 

17/1148/OUT - Outline planning permission for up to 155 residential units and a 64-bedroom 
residential care home. Means of access to be determined with scale, layout, appearance 
and landscaping reserved for future consideration. Refused contrary to officer 
recommendation on 07/03/2018 but subsequently allowed on appeal by the Planning 
Inspectorate on 14/01/2019 following a Public Inquiry.

DESCRIPTION OF SITE/PROPOSAL

The application site comprises a field of approx. 0.6ha situated on the north side of Newcourt 
Road. The site is bounded by Newcourt Road itself (from which there is a field gate giving 
access to the site), the Exmouth branch railway line to the east, a further field to the north, 
and dwellings and their curtilage to the south. All the boundaries to the field comprise 
hedgerows of varying heights and thickness.

Outline planning permission is now sought for the development of the site to provide 7 
dwellings (3 open market and 4 self-build plots) with access from Newcourt Road. The 
appearance, landscaping, layout and scale of the development are all matters reserved for 
subsequent approval.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION SUPPLIED BY THE APPLICANT

The application is accompanied by the following supporting documents – 
 Planning Statement
 Technical Note in respect of Highways and Access
 Archaeological Magnetometer survey
 Ecological Impact Assessment, Ecological Impact Assessment Addendum and 

Ecological Impact Assessment Technical Note.
 Tree Survey

Page 33

Agenda Item 5



 Drainage Strategy information

REPRESENTATIONS

11 letters of objection (including one from the Topsham Society) have been received raising 
the following issues – 

 Constitutes development in ‘landscape setting’ contrary to the Core Strategy and 
Development Plan – loss/erosion of gap between Exeter and Topsham

 Undesirable precedent weakening ability to resist further development on green 
space

 Transportation issues – 
o Increased traffic using narrow lane, including construction traffic
o Vehicular access unsatisfactory due to narrowness of lane, lack of visibility 

and impact on highway safety
o Lack of pavements on Newcourt Road

 Loss of green space
 Loss of hedgerow/wildlife impact
 Bat activity
 No need for additional housing in area given existing developments underway
 Not a sustainable location for development
 Doubtful benefits of ‘self-build’ housing, real need is for affordable housing for local 

people
 Erosion of character of Topsham and pressure on local facilities
 Impact on water supply and sewage system locally
 Potential overlooking/loss of privacy
 Factual inconsistencies in supporting documents regarding proximity of local facilities

CONSULTATIONS

County Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment – Comment that the level of 
traffic generation is expected to be modest and the vehicular access is acceptable in 
principle.  Conditions are recommended to ensure provision of footway and crossing point 
and secure cycle parking.

Environmental Health – Recommends conditions relating to hours of construction, land 
contamination and an acoustic design statement.

Network Rail – No objection in principle to this proposal but make recommendations for 
considerations to be taken into account to protect railway infrastructure.

Devon County Council (Lead Local Flood Authority) – Highlight that they are not a statutory 
consultee in this case as the proposal is not a major development. Notwithstanding this 
comment that the surface water drainage in connection with the scheme should follow the 
principles of sustainable drainage.

South West Water – Confirm that potable water supply can be provided, that only foul 
drainage will be permitted to connect to public foul/combined sewer and recommend that 
surface water is discharged as high up the hierarchy of drainage options as is reasonably 
practical.

Page 34



Principle Project Manager (Heritage) - Although no remains are currently known on this 
particular site, this does not mean that none are actually present. Due to the potential for this 
site to contain similar remains a condition requiring a scheme of archaeological work should 
be attached to any grant of permission.

PLANNING POLICIES/POLICY GUIDANCE

Central Government Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) – with particular regard to sections
2. Achieving sustainable development
4. Decision-making
5. Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
11. Making effective use of land
12. Achieving well-designed places
15. Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG)

Exeter Local Development Framework Core Strategy 2012
CP1 – The Spatial Approach
CP3 – Housing Distribution
CP4 – Density
CP5 – Meeting Housing Needs
CP7 – Affordable Housing
CP9 – Transport
CP11 – Pollution and Air Quality
CP12 – Flood Risk
CP14 – Renewable and Low Carbon Energy in New Development
CP15 – Sustainable Construction
CP16 – Green Infrastructure, Landscape and Biodiversity
CP17 – Design and Local Distinctiveness
CP18 – Infrastructure
CP19 - Strategic Allocations

Exeter Local Plan First Review 1995-2011 Saved Policies
AP1 – Design and Location of Development
AP2 – Sequential Approach
H1 – Search Sequence
H2 – Location Priorities
H5 – Diversity of Housing
H7 – Housing for Disabled People
T1 – Hierarchy of Modes
T2 – Accessibility Criteria
T3 – Encouraging Use of Sustainable Modes
T5 – Cycle Route Network
T9 – Access to Buildings by People with Disabilities
T10 – Car Parking Standards
C5 – Archaeology
LS1 – Landscape Setting

Page 35



EN2 – Contaminated Land
EN4 – Flood Risk
EN5 – Noise
DG1 – Objectives of Urban Design
DG4 – Residential Layout and Amenity
DG5 – Provision of Open Space and Children’s Play Areas
DG6 – Vehicle Circulation and Car Parking in Residential Development
DG7 – Crime Prevention and Safety

Development Delivery Development Plan Document (Publication Version) (DDDPD):-

This document represents a material consideration but has not been adopted and does not 
form part of the Development Plan.
DD8 - Housing on unallocated sites
DD21 - Accessibility and sustainable movement
DD29 - Protection of landscape setting areas

Exeter City Council Supplementary Planning Documents

Residential Design SPD
Planning Obligations SPD
Sustainable Transport SPD
Trees in Relation to Development SPD
Archaeology and Development SPD

Other documents

Exeter Fringes Landscape Sensitivity and Capacity Study February 2007
Visual Land Parcel Evaluation for Potential Residential Sites in Exeter September 2013

OBSERVATIONS

There are a number of material planning considerations that need to be assessed in 
connection with this application. However in terms of the overall context for determination of 
the application it is important to highlight the position in relation to the Council’s 5 year 
housing land supply and implications for relevant development plan policies.

Most recently this position has been highlighted in the consideration of an application for 
residential development of land in close proximity to the current application site, namely 
application 17/1148/OUT for land at Clyst Road that is only separated from the current 
application site by the intervening Exeter to Exmouth branch railway line. During this recent 
Public Inquiry it was accepted that the Council could only demonstrate a 5 year land supply 
of just over 2 years and 1 month. This is important when weighing up the planning balance in 
reaching a decision on the current application.

The current application site lies within an area identified as Landscape Setting in both the 
Adopted Local Plan and Core Strategy – Policies LS1 and CP16 respectively.

Policy LS1 states – 

“Development which would harm the Landscape Setting of the city will not be permitted. 
Proposals should maintain local distinctiveness and character and:

Page 36



(a) Be reasonably necessary for the purposes of agriculture, forestry, the rural 
economy, outdoor recreation or the provision of infrastructure; or

(b) Be concerned with change of use, conversion or extension of existing buildings;

Any built development associated with outdoor recreation must be essential to the viability of 
the proposal unless the recreational activity provides sufficient benefit to outweigh any harm 
to the character and amenity of the area.”

Whilst it is not considered that the proposed development would satisfy the requirements of 
this policy, in the Clyst Rd appeal mentioned above the Inspector referred to the policy as 
being based on outdated information, superseded by national policy and thereby concluded 
that conflict with this policy should be afforded limited weight. As such it is considered that 
conflict with policy LS1 should be afforded limited weight in the determination of this 
application. The Inspector also attached no weight to policy DD29 of the emerging 
Development Delivery DPD due to the fact that it has not been progressed to submission 
and is likely to be delayed until sufficient progress has been made with the intended Greater 
Exeter Strategic Plan (GESP). It is accepted that no weight should be attached to DDDPD 
policies in the consideration of this current application

Therefore the critical policy against which to judge the merits of the principle of residential 
development of the application site is policy CP16. The relevant section of policy CP16 is its 
third paragraph which reads as follows -  

“The character and local distinctiveness of the areas identified below, will be 
protected and proposals for landscape, recreation, biodiversity and educational 
enhancement brought forward, in accordance with guidance in the Green 
Infrastructure Strategy, through the Development Management DPD:
• the hills to the north and north west;
• Knowle Hill to the south west;
• the strategic gap between Topsham and Exeter;
• and the Valley Parks: Riverside, Duryard, Mincinglake, Ludwell, Alphington to 
Whitestone Cross, Savoy Hill and Hoopern.”

The key consideration therefore in respect of the application proposal in terms of its 
acceptability from a policy context is considered to be – 

a) whether it would harm the landscape setting of the city by virtue of its impact upon 
the local distinctiveness and character of the area, and 

b) if it is determined that there is harm in this respect, whether taking into account other 
material considerations, such as the absence of a 5yr housing land supply, that 
harm/adverse impact significantly and demonstrably outweighs the benefits of the 
proposal in terms of the provision of much needed housing to meet identified needs.

Therefore a case specific assessment of the harm/impact arising from the scheme is 
required. The explanatory text to policy CP16 states the following in respect of the Topsham 
Gap – 

“The strategic gap between Topsham and Exeter is also particularly important in that it forms 
an open break between the two settlements, thus preventing their coalescence, whilst also 
protecting Topsham’s attractive setting. Whilst this area has a low intrinsic landscape value, 
the role it plays makes it sensitive to development.”

The site forms does form part of the ‘Topsham Gap’ and whilst it is located more towards the 
norther fringes of the town it still contributes to the sense of separation from Exeter as part of 
the more open countryside to the north of Topsham. In terms of the Exeter Fringes 

Page 37



Landscape Sensitivity and Capacity Study 2007 the land forms part of land parcel 21 which 
is identified as being of ‘medium’ landscape sensitivity. The site is also one of those 
assessed in the Visual Land Parcel Evaluation for Potential Residential Sites in Exeter (Sept 
2013) as site no 107. The assessment of this site concludes that does not make an 
important contribution to the visual amenity of the urban fringe, and has limited impact in 
views both of, and from the site. In terms of visual value and susceptibility the site is 
evaluated as being low in both respects, with no distinct features other than the hedge site 
boundaries. It is also identified as being of very low visual sensitivity.

Notwithstanding the above it is fact that the scheme would result in development of part of 
the Topsham gap and landscape setting around Topsham, and would consequently harm 
the character of part of it. However, the development of this small site would not in itself lead 
to any material coalescence between the two settlements. Its visual sensitivity is identified as 
low and in the context of the character of the immediate vicinity of the site, and the fact that 
land adjoining the site on the other side of the railway line has recently been granted 
permission for residential development on appeal, it is not considered that this proposal 
would have a significant urbanising effect. There would still remain open land between the 
site and the Motorway and therefore whilst the ‘gap’ would be eroded its function in respect 
of preventing coalescence in terms of policy CP16 would be maintained and the remaining 
gap would continue to serve its purpose of separation. In this context the harm to the 
landscape setting arising from this particular proposal is considered minimal. 

Even if a contrary view of the proposal with regard to the degree of harm resulting from it on 
the landscape setting and local distinctiveness and character of the area is adopted, it would 
be necessary to balance this against the Council’s inability to demonstrate a 5 year housing 
supply. In the recent appeal decision in respect of the Clyst Road site, despite considering 
that the scheme would not protect the character and local distinctiveness of the strategic 
gap, the Inspector concluded “in the light of the considerable housing shortfall, the 
contribution that the appeal scheme would make to the supply of housing is an important 
material consideration that is sufficient to outweigh the adverse effect that would be caused 
to the character and local distinctiveness of the strategic gap and conflicts with the relevant 
development plan policies in this instance.”

Given the above assessment of the merits of the scheme the proposal is considered 
acceptable from a landscape setting policy perspective.

Highways 

The Highway Authority have no in principle objection to the scheme. The level of traffic 
generation from the seven dwellings site is expected to be modest and the additional traffic 
generated is not a significant concern. The proposed access arrangements to serve the site 
are considered acceptable subject to conditions requiring details of the footpath and the 
provision of a crossing point to allow suitable access for those that wish to use the bus stops 
of Topsham Road.  A condition ensuring provision of secure covered cycle parking is also 
recommended.  With these conditions in place it is considered that this site, which is in close 
proximity to Topsham District Centre, can be considered a sustainable location for 
development.    Detailed matters relating to the internal layout of the development and 
vehicle/cycle parking provision will be addressed at reserved matters stage. 

Affordable Housing

There have been recent changes to the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) in 
relation to affordable housing provision which have resulted in conflict with the Planning 
Practice Guidance (PPG). When submitted the scheme, which seeks consent for 7 
dwellings, would have been clearly below the threshold of 10 dwellings (and could have 

Page 38



been conditioned to ensure the floor area of the dwellings did not exceed 1000m2). 
However, the revised NPPF (updated on 19 February 2019) introduces a new threshold 
trigger of 0.5 hectares, which this site (at 0.6 hectares) is above.   Discussions have been 
held with the applicant, who have agreed to pay an off-site financial contribution for 
affordable housing (in accordance with the Council requirements). Whilst on-site provision 
would normally be expected, it is considered that the timing of the changes to the NPPF in 
relation to this application and the resulting conflict between the NPPF and the PPG, 
constitute exceptional circumstances that justify accepting a financial contribution in this 
case.
 
Other matters

The scale, layout, appearance and landscaping of the proposed development are all 
reserved for subsequent approval. Based on the character of the surroundings, size of the 
site, and the juxtaposition of surrounding buildings, it is considered that the site would be 
capable of accommodating 7 dwellings that meet the required internal/external amenity 
standards and achieve an acceptable relationship to adjoining properties without any 
significant adverse impact upon the residential amenity of those properties. The ecological 
impact of the scheme is considered acceptable; whilst the new access would require the 
removal of the hedgerow along the site frontage, the applicants have agreed to replace this 
with a newly planted Devon hedge bank.  Furthermore the scheme represents an 
opportunity to enhance the ecological interest of the site through landscaping and the 
incorporation of integral bat/bird bricks within the design of the houses.

Financial Considerations

The proposal is CIL liable in respect of any dwellings constructed on the site. The CIL 
additional information form and the CIL Assumption of Liability form have been submitted. 
However, in the absence of any detailed information in respect of the size/design of the 
dwellings (which would follow at ‘reserved matters’ stage) it is not possible to quantify the 
amount of CIL that will be payable in association with the development.

All new dwellings would attract New Homes Bonus payments in line with legislation in force 
at the relevant time.

Habitats Regulations Assessment

A Habitat Regulations Assessment has been undertaken.  This concludes that whilst the 
development has the potential for have a significant effect on a European site, the impacts of 
the development can be mitigated through top-slicing receipts from CIL to contribute towards 
the implementation of measures in the South East Devon European Site Mitigation Strategy.

S106
A S106 agreement will be required to secure the affordable housing financial contribution.

Conclusions

Having considered all the matters outlined above, with particular reference to the relatively 
modest impact of the development in terms of landscape setting policy, the conclusion that 
the development would not have any severe transport impacts and is sustainably located, 
the contribution that this site would make to housing delivery and the provision of self-build 
plots, and having due regard to the weight to be attached to the fact that the Council is 
unable to demonstrate a 5 year supply of housing land, the proposal is considered 
acceptable. 

Page 39



RECOMMENDATION

Approval subject to conditions and a S106 Agreement:

1. Application for the approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local 
Planning Authority before the expiration of three years from the date of this 
permission and the development hereby permitted must be begun not later than two 
years from the final approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved.

Reason: To comply with Section 92 rule 2 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as 
amended.

2. Details of the appearance, landscaping, layout, and scale, (hereinafter called the 
reserved matters) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority before any development begins and the development shall be carried out as 
approved.

Reason: To safeguard the rights of the local planning authority in respect of the reserved 
matters. This information is required before development commences to ensure that the 
development is properly planned with appropriate regard to the reserved matters.

3. In respect of those matters not reserved for later approval, the development hereby 
permitted shall be carried out in accordance with drawing no. 48030-GA-001 and 
246:1:01 G (in respect of the access arrangements and associated replacement 
Devon hedge bank contained within the red lines). 

Reason - To ensure that the means of access to serve the development (which is not a 
reserved matter) are acceptable from a highway safety perspective.

4. Pre-commencement condition: Prior to commencement of the development, details 
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority of secure covered cycle parking 
provision for the development. Development shall not be commenced until such 
details have been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and prior to 
occupation the cycle parking shall be provided in accordance with the submitted 
details. 

 
Reason: To provide adequate facilities for sustainable transport. 

5. Pre-commencement condition: No part of the development hereby approved shall be 
commenced until details of the footway adjacent to the site (on Newcourt Road) and 
crossing point on Newcourt Road, have been provided and maintained in accordance 
with details that shall have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority and retained for that purpose at all times.

Reason:  To provide a safe and suitable access in accordance with paragraphs 108 and 110 
of the National Planning Policy Framework and policy CP9 of the ECC Core Strategy.

6. Pre-commencement condition: No development related works shall take place within 
the site until a written scheme of archaeological work has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This scheme shall include on-site 
work, and off site work such as the analysis, publication, and archiving of the results, 

Page 40



together with a timetable for completion of each element. All works shall be carried 
out and completed in accordance with the approved scheme, unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the appropriate identification, recording and publication of archaeological 
and historic remains affected by the development. This information is required before 
development commences to ensure that historic remains are not damaged during the 
construction process.

7. Pre-commencement condition: No development shall take place on site until a full 
investigation of the site has taken place to determine the extent of, and risk posed by, 
any contamination of the land and the results, together with any remedial works 
necessary, have been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
building(s) shall not be occupied until the approved remedial works have been 
implemented and a remediation statement submitted to the Local Planning Authority 
detailing what contamination has been found and how it has been dealt with together 
with confirmation that no unacceptable risks remain.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the occupants of the buildings hereby approved. 
This information is required before development commences to ensure that any remedial 
works are properly considered and addressed at the appropriate stage.

8. Pre-commencement condition: Prior to commencement of the development the 
applicant shall submit for approval in writing by the LPA an Acoustic Design 
Statement. Any mitigation measures required shall be implemented in full prior to 
occupation of the development, and maintained thereafter. The Professional Practice 
Guidance Note (ProPG): Planning and Noise for New Residential Development May 
2017 (ANC, IoA and CIEH) describes the expected content and approach of an 
Acoustic Design Statement.

Reason: In the interests of residential amenity

9. Pre-commencement condition: Before commencement of construction of the 
development hereby permitted, the applicant shall submit a SAP calculation which 
demonstrates that a 19% reduction in CO2 emissions over that necessary to meet 
the requirements of the 2013 Building Regulations can be achieved. The measures 
necessary to achieve this CO2 saving shall thereafter be implemented on site and 
within 3 months of practical completion of any dwelling the developer will submit a 
report to the LPA from a suitably qualified consultant to demonstrate compliance with 
this condition.

Reason: In the interests of sustainable development and to ensure that the development 
accords with Core Strategy Policy CP15.

10. Pre-commencement condition: Before commencement of the development details of 
a biodiversity management and enhancement programme for the site shall be 
submitted to and approved by the local planning authority and the programme shall 
be implemented and maintained thereafter in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To enhance the biodiversity quality of the site.

Page 41



11. No site machinery or plant shall be operated, no process shall be carried out and 
no demolition or construction related deliveries received or dispatched from the site 
except between the hours of 8 am to 6pm Monday to Friday, 8am to 1pm Saturday 
and at no time on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

Reason: To protect the amenity of the locality, especially for people living and/or working 
nearby.

12. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with a 
surface water drainage scheme, which shall include details of the means of 
attenuation and disposal of surface water from the site, including through the use of 
sustainable drainage systems.  Details of the scheme, a timetable for tis 
implementation and details of its future management, shall be in general compliance 
with Drainage Strategy Statement – Rev A dated 10/12/18, and shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the LPA prior to the commencement of development.  The 
scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details and timetable 
for implementation.

Reason: To ensure that surface water runoff from the development is managed in 
accordance with the principles of sustainable drainage systems.

13. Any trees, shrubs and/or hedges on or around the site shall not be felled, lopped or 
removed without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To safeguard the rights of control by the Local Planning Authority in these respects 
and in the interests of amenity.

Informatives:

1) In accordance with Chapters 1 and 2 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulations 2017, this development has been screened in respect of the need for an
Appropriate Assessment (AA). Given the nature of the development, it has been concluded 
that an AA is required in relation to potential impact on the relevant Special Protection Area 
(SPA), the Exe Estuary, which is a designated European site. This AA has been carried out 
and concludes that the development is such that it could have an impact primarily associated 
with recreational activity of future occupants of the development. This impact will be 
mitigated in line with the South East Devon European Site Mitigation Strategy prepared by 
Footprint Ecology on behalf of East Devon and Teignbridge District Councils and Exeter City 
Council (with particular reference to Table 26), which is being funded through a proportion of 
the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) collected in respect of the development being 
allocated to funding the mitigation strategy. Or, if the development is not liable to pay CIL, to 
pay the appropriate habitats mitigation contribution through another mechanism (this is likely 
to be either an undertaking in accordance with s111 of the Local Government Act 1972 or a 
Unilateral Undertaking).

2) A legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 relates 
to this planning permission.

3) The Local Planning Authority considers that this development will be CIL (Community
Infrastructure Levy) liable. Payment will become due following commencement of 
development. Where a chargeable development is commenced before the Local Authority 
has received a valid commencement notice (ie where pre-commencement conditions have 
not been discharged) the Local Authority may impose a surcharge, and the ability to claim 
any form of relief from the payment of the Levy will be foregone. You must apply for any 
relief and receive confirmation from the Council before commencing development. For 
further information please see www.exeter.gov.uk/cil.

Page 42

http://www.exeter.gov.uk/cil


4) In accordance with Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework the Council 
has worked in a positive and pro-active way with the Applicant and has negotiated 
amendments to the application to enable the grant of planning permission

5) The submitted site plan (246:1:01 G) is indicative except in so far as it shows the access 
arrangements and it should not be assumed to show an acceptable layout.

5) The applicant’s attention is drawn to the requirements of Network Rail set out in their 
emailed communication dated 16 October 2018.

6) The applicant’s attention is drawn to the requirements of South West Water set out in their 
emailed communication dated 27 September 2018.

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO:  PLANNING COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting: 24 June 2019
Report of: City Development Manager
Title: Delegated Decisions

1 WHAT IS THE REPORT ABOUT

1.1 This report lists planning applications determined and applications that have been 
withdrawn between the date of finalising the agenda of the last Planning Committee 
and the date of finalising this agenda. Applications are listed by Ward.

2

2.1

2.2

3

3.1

RECOMMENDATION

Members are requested to advise the Asst City Development Manager Planning 
(Roger Clotworthy) or City Development Manager (Andy Robbins) of any questions 
on the schedule prior to Planning Committee meeting.

Members are asked to note the report.

PLANNING APPLICATION CODES

The latter part of the application reference number indicates the type of application:

OUT Outline Planning Permission
RES Approval of Reserved Matters
FUL Full Planning Permission
TPO Works to Tree(s) with Preservation Order
ADV Advertisement Consent
CAT Works to Tree(s) in Conservation Area
LBC Listed Building Consent
ECC Exeter City Council Regulation 3
LED Lawfulness of Existing Use/Development
LPD Certificate of Proposed Use/Development
TEL Telecommunication Apparatus Determination
CMA County Matter Application
CTY Devon County Council Application
MDO Modification and Discharge of Planning Obligation Regulations
NMA Non Material Amendment
EXT   Extension to Extant Planning Consent
PD Extension - Prior Approval
PDJ Office to Dwelling - Prior Approval

3.2 The decision type uses the following codes:
DREF Deemed Refusal
DTD   Declined To Determine
NLU  Was Not Lawful Use
PAN   Prior Approval Not Required
PAR  Prior Approval Required
PER Permitted
REF Refuse Planning Permission
RNO Raise No Objection
ROB Raise Objections
SPL Split Decision
WDN Withdrawn by Applicant
WLU Was Lawful Use
WTD Withdrawn - Appeal against non-determination

ANDY ROBBINS
CITY DEVELOPMENT MANAGER

Page 47

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Alphington

19/0084/FUL 28/02/2019

Permitted 03/05/2019

Delegated Decision

Unit 1 Stone Lane Retail Park Marsh Barton Road Exeter Devon 
EX2 8LH 

Installation of a mezzanine floor (Use Class A1) within Unit 1.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0383/FUL 11/04/2019

Refuse Planning Permission 10/05/2019

Delegated Decision

64 Blenheim Road Exeter Devon EX2 8SE 

Two storey side extension, single storey rear extension and 
landscaping works

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0406/FUL 02/05/2019

Permitted 24/05/2019

Delegated Decision

Sainthill House Cowick Lane Exeter Devon EX2 9JG 

Extend over ground floor bedroom to form connection into cottage: 
add 2 storey extension to frontage block to form new bedrooms 
and extend over kitchen to cottage to form new office and 
bedroom.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0407/LBC 02/05/2019

Permitted 24/05/2019

Delegated Decision

Sainthill House Cowick Lane Exeter Devon EX2 9JG 

Remove staircase in south east corner and install lift: extend over 
ground floor bedroom to form connection into cottage: add 2 storey 
extension to frontage block to form new bedrooms and extend over 
kitchen to cottage to form new office and bedroom.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0486/ADV

Refuse Planning Permission 24/05/2019

Delegated Decision

Vospers Motorhouse Ltd  Matford Green Business Park Exeter  

Freestanding pole sign (height 9.94 metres)

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

All Planning Decisions Made and Withdrawn Applications 
between 03/05/2019 and 13/06/2019

Page 49



Duryard And St James

17/1396/FUL 04/04/2019

Refuse Planning Permission 13/05/2019

Delegated Decision

Belle Vue Belle Vue Road Exeter Devon EX4 5BP 

Replacement dwelling

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

18/0573/FUL 18/04/2019

Permitted 10/05/2019

Delegated Decision

Pine Lodge Argyll Road Exeter Devon EX4 4RZ 

Side extension to Pine lodge, re-instatement of gateway and new 
detached garage.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

18/1838/FUL 21/02/2019

Refuse Planning Permission 07/06/2019

Delegated Decision

91 Victoria Street Exeter Devon EX4 6JG 

Change of use from a mixed use of office and a House of Multiple 
Occupation for up to 6 persons to a House of Multiple Occupation 
for up to 10 persons

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0217/FUL 09/05/2019

Refuse Planning Permission 07/06/2019

Delegated Decision

4 Oxford Road Exeter Devon EX4 6QU 

Development of a single storey rear extension, reinstatement of 
front boundary wall and front garden area, internal alterations 
removal of existing timber sash windows with replacement timber 
sash windows

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0361/LBC

Withdrawn by Applicant 08/05/2019

Delegated Decision

Land Adjacent 17 New North Road Exeter   

Demolition of existing garages and construction of 1 building to 
form 5 new apartments with associated landscaping.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0437/FUL 18/04/2019

Permitted 28/05/2019

Delegated Decision

92 And 93  Sidwell Street Exeter EX4 6PH

Full replacement of front elevation windows

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 50



19/0438/LBC 18/04/2019

Permitted 28/05/2019

Delegated Decision

92 And 93  Sidwell Street Exeter EX4 6PH

Full replacement of front elevation windows

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0465/FUL 11/04/2019

Permitted 03/05/2019

Delegated Decision

7 Culverland Close Exeter  Devon EX4 6HR 

Demolition of existing car port and replacement with home office

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0531/FUL 02/05/2019

Permitted 30/05/2019

Delegated Decision

65 Victoria Street Exeter Devon EX4 6JQ 

Two storey rear extension to replace existing.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0539/FUL 16/05/2019

Permitted 07/06/2019

Delegated Decision

42-44 Old Tiverton Road Exeter Devon EX4 6NG 

Replacement roof covering.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Exwick

18/1253/FUL 27/09/2018

Withdrawn Returned 
(unlikely to be det.)

17/05/2019

Delegated Decision

Rededowne Redhills Exeter Devon EX4 2JF 

Alteration to access and erection of double garage

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Heavitree

19/0497/FUL 18/04/2019

Permitted 03/06/2019

Delegated Decision

125 Sweetbrier Lane Exeter Devon EX1 3AP 

Two storey rear extension

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 51



19/0597/LPD

Was lawful use 31/05/2019

Delegated Decision

27 Lower Avenue Exeter Devon EX1 2PR 

Hip-to-gable roof extension, rear flat roof dormer and a roof light to 
the front.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Mincinglake And Whipton

19/0507/LPD

Was lawful use 06/06/2019

Delegated Decision

11 Hill Barton Lane Exeter Devon EX1 3PT 

Loft conversion with rear dormer and front roof lights; single storey 
rear extension and porch to front.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Newtown And St Leonards

18/0636/NMA

Permitted 17/05/2019

Delegated Decision

Stagecoach Devon Belgrave Road Exeter Devon EX1 2LB 

Non-material amendment of planning permission reference 
16/0405/FUL (phase 1) to link with to development proposed as 
application 18/0545/FUL (phase 2) with corridor access linkage 
and arrangements for sharing bin stores, cycle stores, internal and 
external amenity space, locating accessible standard rooms within 
the second phase, two additional student rooms, amended 
landscape scheme and external amendments.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

18/1229/CONR 13/09/2018

Permitted 22/05/2019

Delegated Decision

1 Cheeke Street Exeter Devon EX1 2DD 

Removal of condition number 22 of planning permission 
17/0053/FUL. The commuted sum towards improvements to the 
highway, notably the provision of a pedestrian crossing,  to be 
secured by a commuted sum by legal agreement and not a Section 
278. Demolition of existing building and construction of a 7-storey 
building including basement to provide student accommodation 
(Sui Generis) and associated works and improvements; and the 
provision of a new coach passenger waiting room (Sui Generis).

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0072/FUL

Refuse Planning Permission 31/05/2019

Delegated Decision

17 Mount Pleasant Road Exeter Devon EX4 7AD 

Single storey extension to the rear of the existing property.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 52



19/0127/FUL 21/02/2019

Permitted 23/05/2019

Delegated Decision

28 Barnfield Road Exeter Devon EX1 1RX 

Residential development comprising 7 apartments, associated 
access improvements, landscaping (including the removal of a 
tree) and parking.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0357/FUL 04/04/2019

Permitted 13/05/2019

Delegated Decision

29 Clifton Hill Exeter Devon EX1 2DJ 

Alterations and enlargement of side extension

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0395/ADV

Permitted 16/05/2019

Delegated Decision

Unit 1B  Bishops Court Industrial Estate, Sidmouth Road Exeter 
EX2 7JH  

Advertisement consent for the erection of 2no. internally 
illuminated fascia advertisements

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0522/FUL 25/04/2019

Permitted 31/05/2019

Delegated Decision

49 Parr Street Exeter Devon EX1 2BE 

Ground floor extension and conversion of existing garden store to 
WC

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0575/DIS

Permitted 10/05/2019

Delegated Decision

4 Penleonard Close Exeter Devon EX2 4NY 

Discharge of Condition 3 (Materials) relating to planning 
application 18/0334/FUL approved under appeal reference 
APP/Y1110/D/18/3213975 on 11 February 2019.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0594/DIS

Condition(s) Partially 
Approved

05/06/2019

Delegated Decision

Builders Yard Lower Albert Street Exeter Devon  

Discharge of Condition 9, on approval Ref. 19/0594/DIS granted 
consent at appeal on 12 October 2019, relating to cycle storage 
details

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 53



19/0671/NMA

Permitted 30/05/2019

Delegated Decision

28 College Road Exeter Devon EX1 1TG 

Removal of door and enlarging of three windows on north elevation

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Pennsylvania

19/0462/FUL 02/05/2019

Permitted 24/05/2019

Delegated Decision

160 Pennsylvania Road Exeter Devon EX4 6DX 

Alterations to existing annexe, front elevation and boundary wall.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0471/VOC 11/04/2019

Permitted 13/05/2019

Delegated Decision

Exeter Gateway Centre Mount Pleasant Road Exeter Devon EX4 
7AE 

Variation of condition 2 of application 17/1563/FUL to approve 
amended plans for size and external finishes of extension

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Pinhoe

18/1336/OUT 27/09/2018

Permitted 05/06/2019

Delegated Decision

Chancel Lane Pinhoe Exeter   

Outine planning application for 3 dwellings. All matters reserved 
except for means of access.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0092/FUL 11/04/2019

Permitted 12/06/2019

Delegated Decision

Unit 2  The Dairy Estate Pinbrook Road Exeter Devon EX4 8HH 

Change of use from workshop and garage (Class B2) to dog day 
care centre (sui generis) including erection of reception area and 
siting of portacabins

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 54



19/0181/DIS

Permitted 10/05/2019

Delegated Decision

Land At Sandrock  Gypsy Hill Lane Exeter EX1 3RP

Discharge conditions 3 (Reptile Survey/Mitigation), 4 (Dormice 
Mitigation/Compensation Plan or Licence), 5 (Badger 
Mitigation/Compensation Plan or Licence), 6 (Waste Audit 
Statement), 7 (Surface Water Drainage Management System - 
Construction), 8 (Surface Water Management Scheme), 9 
(Construction Method Statement) and 10 (Tree Protection Plan) of 
pp. 17/1320/FUL - Construction of 62 dwellings with associated 
public open space, infrastructure and landscaping. (Revised)

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0299/FUL 07/03/2019

Permitted 24/05/2019

Delegated Decision

Sunnybrook Venny Bridge Exeter Devon EX4 8JX 

Single storey front extension and porch

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0394/NMA

Split Decision 10/05/2019

Delegated Decision

Land At Sandrock  Gipsy Hill Lane Exeter EX1 3RP  

Non-material amendments to planning permission 17/1320/FUL - 
Change Plots 39 and 40 from semi-detached to detached 
dwellings and change Plots 15-20 from Sussex to Bloomfield 
house type.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0418/FUL 28/03/2019

Refuse Planning Permission 08/05/2019

Delegated Decision

Plot 3 10 Honey Lane Exeter EX1 3TB

Installation of 5 rooflights and amendments to window fenestration.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0419/FUL 28/03/2019

Refuse Planning Permission 08/05/2019

Delegated Decision

Plot 2 10 Honey Lane Exeter Devon EX1 3TB 

Minor Alterations to existing fenestration and installation of 8 
rooflights

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0420/FUL 28/03/2019

Refuse Planning Permission 08/05/2019

Delegated Decision

Plot 1 10 Honey Lane Exeter EX1 3TB 

Minor alterations to existing fenestration, removal of 2 rooflights 
and installation of 8 rooflights.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 55



19/0454/FUL 11/04/2019

Permitted 03/05/2019

Delegated Decision

6 Broadleaf Close Exeter Devon EX1 3XA 

Single storey rear extension

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0476/LPD

Was lawful use 31/05/2019

Delegated Decision

10 Fairview Terrace Exeter Devon EX1 3SQ 

Proposed loft conversion

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0477/FUL 18/04/2019

Refuse Planning Permission 28/05/2019

Delegated Decision

58 Summerway Exeter Devon EX4 8DL 

Two storey side extension.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0535/FUL 18/04/2019

Permitted 31/05/2019

Delegated Decision

Land At Exhibition Way Exeter    

Change of use to car sales

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0536/FUL 02/05/2019

Permitted 24/05/2019

Delegated Decision

2 Bakers Way Exeter Devon EX4 8GA 

Construction of 2 rapid eVolt charge points to serve 3 electric 
parking pays, works include 2 feeder pillars, 4 bollards and 1 sign

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0565/FUL 16/05/2019

Permitted 07/06/2019

Delegated Decision

18 Station Road Pinhoe Exeter Devon EX1 3SA 

Excavation of front garden for new driveway.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0586/FUL 09/05/2019

Permitted 03/06/2019

Delegated Decision

9 Monkerton Court Pinn Lane Exeter Devon EX1 3RG 

Single storey rear extension.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 56



Priory

18/1643/FUL 28/03/2019

Refuse Planning Permission 08/05/2019

Delegated Decision

Land To The Rear Of 327 Topsham Road  Exeter Devon EX2 6EY 

Construction of two storey dwelling, garage and associated 
external works.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

18/1668/DIS

Permitted 03/06/2019

Delegated Decision

51 Salters Road Exeter Devon EX2 5JQ 

Discharge of conditions 3, 4, 9 and 10 of planning permission 
18/0307/FUL (approval of exterior materials, landscaping scheme, 
energy efficiency and CEMP).

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0056/FUL 07/02/2019

Permitted 12/06/2019

Delegated Decision

Rear Of 23/25/27 Southbrook Road Exeter Devon EX2 6JA 

Two detached bungalows

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0247/FUL 25/04/2019

Refuse Planning Permission 31/05/2019

Delegated Decision

15 Cowper Avenue Exeter Devon EX2 6BT 

Single storey side extension.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0253/ADV

Permitted 16/05/2019

Delegated Decision

Ground Floor Rosemoor Court Pynes Hill Exeter Devon EX2 5TU 

We are adding a sign to a space on a existing sign

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0343/FUL 21/03/2019

Permitted 07/05/2019

Delegated Decision

Royal Devon And Exeter Hospital Barrack Road Exeter Devon  

Re-design of Bowmoor Car Park (increasing parking provision by 
20).

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 57



19/0429/FUL 09/05/2019

Permitted 30/05/2019

Delegated Decision

8 Dryden Road Exeter Devon EX2 5BS 

Change of use from former public house (A4) to four apartments 
(C3) including demolition of existing garage block.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

St Davids

19/0085/FUL 07/02/2019

Permitted 04/06/2019

Delegated Decision

2 Cathedral Court Southernhay East Exeter Devon EX1 1AF 

External access ramp to side elevation.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0086/LBC 11/04/2019

Permitted 04/06/2019

Delegated Decision

2 Cathedral Court Southernhay East Exeter Devon EX1 1AF 

External access ramp to side elevation.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0174/ADV

Permitted 05/06/2019

Delegated Decision

Higher Market Guildhall Shopping And Dining, The Terrace  Queen 
Street Exeter EX4 3FB 

Re-position existing fascia signage.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0180/DIS

Condition(s) Partially 
Approved

08/05/2019

Delegated Decision

The Chapel Site Office Lower Coombe Street Exeter Devon EX1 
1DX 

Discharge of Condition 3 (Materials); 5 (Archaeology); 6 (CEMP); 7
 (Contamination); 8 (Acoustic glazing) and 9 (Garden plan) of 
planning application 17/1374/FUL granted 16 January 2018

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 58



19/0182/NMA

Permitted 09/05/2019

Delegated Decision

The Chapel Site Office Lower Coombe Street Exeter Devon EX1 
1DX 

Non-material Amendment to 2 no. dwellings and conversion of 
chapel including changes to windows, roof details, rooflights, light 
tubes , boundary treatment, chimney, flues, eaves details and 
access width of planning application 17/1374/FUL granted on 16 
January 2018

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0278/LBC 02/05/2019

Permitted 30/05/2019

Delegated Decision

2 Friars Walk Exeter Devon EX2 4AY 

Alterations to front boundary wall, access gates and amenity 
space.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0359/ADV

Permitted 16/05/2019

Delegated Decision

10 High Street Exeter Devon EX4 3LF 

Installation of new fascia sign, projecting sign & internally 
positioned 'ear piercing' sign.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0377/LBC 02/05/2019

Permitted 29/05/2019

Delegated Decision

59 High Street Exeter Devon EX4 3DL 

Localised re-covering of flat roof.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0380/FUL 25/04/2019

Permitted 28/05/2019

Delegated Decision

70 South Street Exeter Devon EX1 1EG 

Continue the balustrade to the east and south perimeter to match 
existing. New gate on east elevation to also match.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0470/PDC

Prior Approval Required and 
Granted

23/05/2019

Delegated Decision

13 North Street St Davids Exeter Devon EX4 3QS 

Change of use from Coffee Shop (A1) to Cafe (A3)

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 59



19/0506/LBC 18/04/2019

Permitted 24/05/2019

Delegated Decision

75 Queen Street Exeter Devon EX4 3RX 

Replacement of existing basement stairflights, formation of new 
opening and new fire lobby to principal salon entrance

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0533/FUL 02/05/2019

Permitted 30/05/2019

Delegated Decision

2 Friars Walk Exeter Devon EX2 4AY 

Alterations to front boundary wall, access gates and amenity 
space.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0566/FUL 02/05/2019

Permitted 24/05/2019

Delegated Decision

4 South Street Exeter Devon EX1 1DZ 

Change of use from dentist (D1 use) to nail bar (sui generis use)

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0649/FUL 16/05/2019

Permitted 07/06/2019

Delegated Decision

Flats 1-8 Pitts Court Old Mill Close Exeter Devon EX2 4BW 

Replacement windows.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

St Loyes

17/1962/OUT 08/02/2018

Permitted 14/05/2019

Delegated Decision

Tesco Stores Ltd Russell Way Exeter Devon EX2 7EZ 

Outline application for development of a non-food retail unit (Use 
Class A1), with associated deliveries yard, car parking and 
landscaping on part of the existing Tesco car park (all matters 
reserved except access).

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0173/FUL 11/04/2019

Permitted 22/05/2019

Delegated Decision

56 Birchy Barton Hill Exeter Devon EX1 3HD 

Two storey side extension.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 60



19/0431/OUT 11/04/2019

Refuse Planning Permission 16/05/2019

Delegated Decision

Hedge Rise Sidmouth Road St Loyes Exeter Devon EX2 5QJ 

Outline application for a two storey dwelling (all matters reserved 
for future consideration)

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0488/FUL 11/04/2019

Permitted 24/05/2019

Delegated Decision

25 Couper Meadows Exeter Devon EX2 7TF 

Replacement conservatory and rear kitchen extension

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0519/DIS

Condition(s) Fully 
Discharged

24/05/2019

Delegated Decision

Land East Of Railway Line Between Apple Lane And A379 Apple 
Lane Exeter EX2 

Discharge of condition 11 (Parking Spaces); 13 (Noise 
Assessment) ; 14 (Cycle Parking); 15 (Raised Table Assess 
Details); 16 (Footway Link) and 19 (Drainage) of planning 
application 16/0972/03 granted 23 January 2017

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

St Thomas

18/1592/FUL 22/11/2018

Permitted 06/06/2019

Delegated Decision

100 Cowick Street Exeter Devon EX4 1JF 

Change of use from retail (A1 use) to retail (A1 use) and hot food 
takeaway (A5 use) with installation of kitchen ventilation system.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0043/FUL 28/03/2019

Permitted 03/05/2019

Delegated Decision

14 Dunsford Gardens Exeter Devon EX4 1LN 

Proposed single storey extension to north-east and north-west 
sides and raised terrace.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0487/FUL 11/04/2019

Permitted 03/05/2019

Delegated Decision

12 Wentworth Gardens Exeter Devon EX4 1NH 

Single storey side extension (Renewal of 16/0211/FUL)

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 61



19/0584/FUL 02/05/2019

Permitted 24/05/2019

Delegated Decision

2 Croft Chase Exeter Devon EX4 1TB 

Alterations to install new roof to rear extension and balcony.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Topsham

18/1551/LBC

Withdrawn Returned 
(unlikely to be det.)

03/06/2019

Delegated Decision

18 Higher Shapter Street Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0AW 

Demolish wall to convert courtyard garden area to parking space

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

18/1679/FUL 31/01/2019

Permitted 17/05/2019

Delegated Decision

5 Tresillian Cottages Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0BD 

One and two storey side and rear extension

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0006/FUL 09/05/2019

Permitted 30/05/2019

Delegated Decision

5 Sunhill Lane Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0BR 

Single and two storey rear extension.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0271/FUL 28/03/2019

Permitted 09/05/2019

Delegated Decision

Exeter Golf And Country Club Topsham Road Exeter Devon EX2 
7AE 

Extend height of existing ball stop netting on north and west 
boundaries of driving range from 10m to 20m high and erect a new 
70m long section 10m high netting between driving range building 
and boundary with Broom Park Nurseries.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0295/VOC 21/03/2019

Permitted 24/05/2019

Delegated Decision

High Street Garage 1-2 High Street Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 
0DZ 

Variation of condition 2 sought (on planning approval ref. 
17/1108/FUL) to add two small rear-facing dormer roof extensions.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 62



19/0452/FUL 25/04/2019

Permitted 06/06/2019

Delegated Decision

52 Fore Street Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0HW 

Enlarged window, and replacement of steel staircase with spiral 
stair and landing

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0453/LBC 25/04/2019

Permitted 06/06/2019

Delegated Decision

52 Fore Street Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0HW 

Enlarged window, and replacement of steel staircase  with spiral 
stair and landing

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0473/DIS

Condition(s) Partially 
Approved

24/05/2019

Delegated Decision

Land At Wear Barton Road Exeter 

Discharge of condition 6 (CEMP), 11 (Drainage), 15 (SAPS) of 
outline planning permission 16/0849/01 granted 6 December 2016 
and condition 3 (Materials) and 7 (Cycle Parking) of reserved 
matters application 18/1081/RES granted 2 November 2018.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0489/FUL 11/04/2019

Permitted 10/05/2019

Delegated Decision

21 Riverside Road Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0LR 

Proposed new garage and conversion of existing garage into living 
accommodation.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0499/FUL 11/04/2019

Permitted 03/05/2019

Delegated Decision

5 Jutland Way Exeter Devon EX2 7FJ 

Enlarged openings for bi-fold doors on east elevation and obscure 
glazed first floor side window (opening section above 1.7m from 
floor level) on south elevation.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0526/FUL 02/05/2019

Permitted 24/05/2019

Delegated Decision

12 Station Road Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0DT 

Demolish existing canopy and construct single storey extension to 
north-west elevation.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 63



19/0563/NMA

Permitted 12/06/2019

Delegated Decision

19 Seabrook Avenue Exeter Devon EX2 7DW 

Non material amendment to render gable end and other alterations 
to original consent.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0587/FUL 09/05/2019

Permitted 31/05/2019

Delegated Decision

37 Resolution Road Exeter Devon EX2 7FG 

Proposed ground floor rear extension

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Total Applications: 89

Page 64



REPORT TO: PLANNING COMMITTEE  
Date of Meeting: 24 June 2019
Report of: City Development Manager
Title: Appeals Report

Is this a Key Decision? No

Is this an Executive or Council Function?   No

1. What is the report about?
1.1 The report provides Members with information on latest decisions received and new appeals 

since the last report.  

2. Recommendation:
2.1 Members are asked to note the report.  

3.

3.1

3.2

Appeal Decisions Received

18/1400/FUL – Almernes, Bridge Road. The application was submitted as a result of an 
enforcement case regarding the dormer constructed.

The main issues for the site were:
a) The effect of the development on the living conditions of the occupants of 4 Locksley 

Close, with particular regard to privacy; and
b) The effect of the external materials used in the development on the character and 

appearance of the area.

In terms of the impact on the living conditions of the occupiers of 4 Locksley Close, the Inspector 
noted that the proposal meets the Council’s required minimum distance between habitable rooms 
and the windows affected serve a garage, kitchen, w/c, bathroom hallway and en-suite. Privacy 
was also maintained by the boundary wall. As a result of the combined distance and the 
intervening screening. The Inspector concluded that there was no exceptional circumstances to 
require a greater separation distance.

In response to the concerns raised that the flat roof may be used as a balcony area, the inspector 
has imposed a planning condition to prohibit the use of the flat roof as an amenity area.
The Inspector notes that the proposal will not result in a harmful loss of privacy to the occupants of 
4 Locksley Close.

The dormer and single storey extension have been clad in composite cladding, which does not 
match the original external materials of the property, contrary to principle 8 of the Householder 
Guide to Extension Design SPD. The Inspector stated that the property was not a prominent 
building and the scheme was difficult to view from public vantage points. Although the dormer was 
slightly more viewable than the single storey extensions, a number of houses within the locality 
had horizontal uPVC cladding and the dormer was therefore not regarded to have a harmful 
impact on the appearance of the area.

Despite the conflict with Principle 8 of the SPD, the materials were not considered to be harmful to 
the character and appearance of the area for these reasons, it was concluded that the appeal 
should be allowed. A condition has also been attached to the permission to prevent the use of the 
flat roof of the single storey extension as an outdoor amenity area.

18/0814/ADV – Unit 5, The Exebridge Centre, Cowick Street. The application proposed a 
number of signs, a split decision was made granting some with advertising consent and refusing 
signs 7 (Red internally illuminated lettering on SE elevation) and sign 9 (Illuminated red border 
tubing on the roof).

The main issues for the site were:
a) The effect of the sign on public safety, with particular regard to highway safety and the 

visual amenity of the area.
Page 65

Agenda Item 7



3.3

3.4

In terms of public safety, the red illuminated ‘Pizza Hut’ lettering would be prominent to drivers 
crossing Exe Bridges. The red illuminated tubing, although higher on the building, could potentially 
also cause a hazard. The Inspector refers to Planning Practice Guidance, which states that the 
main type of advertisements which may cause danger are those which through colour, could be 
mistaken for, or confused with, traffic lights and other authorised signals. The Inspector concluded 
that there was potential for collisions as a result of this proposal.

For these reasons, it was concluded that the appeal should be dismissed as although the signs 
are acceptable in terms of amenity, the proposed development would harm public safety.

18/1605/FUL - Atlas House, Victoria Park Road. The application was to construct a first floor 
extension over a detached garage. The first floor extension would create ancillary 
accommodation for the property.

The main issue for the site was:
a) The effect of the development on the character and appearance of the St Leonard’s 

Conservation Area.

In considering this the Inspector refers to paragraph 196 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF). The existing garage is single storey, there are partial views of the building 
through the tree screen, but due to its low level there is a spacious feel around and above the 
garage when viewed from the road. The proposed extension would be visually bulky at first floor 
and erode some of the open character of the area, which would not assimilate into the street 
scene as successfully as the main house. In this way the proposal would not make a positive 
contribution to the character and appearance of the area.

The harm was considered to be localised and the impact on the conservation area as a whole was 
considered less than substantial within the meaning of paragraph 196 of the NPPF. As a private 
development for improved accommodation, any public benefits were considered to be of no more 
than limited weight and did not outweigh the harm identified.

For these reasons, it was concluded that the appeal should be dismissed as the proposed 
development would harm the significance of the conservation area and neither the character nor 
appearance of the conservation area would be preserved or enhanced.

The Inspector also attached great weight to the relevant saved policies of the Exeter Local Plan 
First Review in accordance with paragraph 213 of the NPPF, stating that although the Local Plan 
is dated, the policies are generally consistent with the NPPF in relation to this appeal.

18/1692/FUL - 35A Ide Lane, Alphington. The application was proposing to knock down the 
existing garage and build a two storey extension.  

The main issues for the site were:
a) The living conditions of the occupants of 35 Ide Lane, with particular regard to light and 

outlook; and
b) The character and appearance of the host dwelling and the local townscape. 

The Council had two reasons for refusing consent. The first related to the impact of the 
development on the residential amenities of existing and future occupiers of neighbouring No. 35 
Ide Lane. The extension would have been approximately 3 metres away from 2 side windows on 
the adjacent property. The one at first floor level is the main window to the second bedroom in the 
property. The one at ground floor level is a secondary window to the lounge area. 

The Council considered that the scheme would result in harm to the residential amenities 
associated with both of these rooms, particularly in respect of loss of light and outlook. The 
Inspector accepted the Council’s conclusions. He stated that the outlook from the affected rooms 
at No. 35 would be “oppressive” and would result in “unacceptable living conditions”. In this 
instance, he does not appear to have attached less weight to the fact that only a secondary 
window would be affected on the ground floor. 

Page 66



The second reason cited for refusing planning permission was that the extension had not been 
designed to be subservient to the original dwellinghouse and therefore by virtue of its size, 
massing and design, the extension was considered to be harmful to the character and appearance 
of the dwelling and the local townscape. The Inspector did not accept this. He observed that an 
existing garage and porch already extended beyond the main front building line of the property 
meaning the overall visual affect at ground floor level would be largely unchanged. At first floor 
level, he concluded that the reduced ridge height and hipped roof would provide a degree of 
subservience. In his judgment, the proposal would result in a more coherent design than currently 
existed and would be in keeping with the character and appearance of the area.       

The Planning Inspectorate dismissed the appeal.

4.

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

New Appeals

18/0920/FUL - Gipsy Hill Hotel, Gipsy Lane
Extension to existing hotel accommodation block to form 9 serviced 1 bedroom apartments following 
partial demolition of building and demolition of bungalow.

18/1515/FUL - 10 Branscombe Close
Additional first floor to existing bungalow.

19/0220/FUL –  143 Fore Street, Heavitree
Loft conversion including raising of roof height and rear dormer.

19/0418/FUL –  Plot 3, 10 Honey Lane
Installation of 5 rooflights and amendments to window fenestration.

19/0419/FUL –  Plot 2, 10 Honey Lane
Minor Alterations to existing fenestration and installation of 8 rooflights.

19/0420/FUL -  Plot 1, 10 Honey Lane
Minor alterations to existing fenestration, removal of 2 rooflights and installation of 8 rooflights.

CITY DEVELOPMENT MANAGER
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)
Background papers used in compiling the report: 
Letters, application files and appeal documents referred to in report are available for inspection 
from:  City Development, Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter

Contact for enquiries: Democratic Services (Committees) - Room 2.3. Tel: 01392 265275

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO: PLANNING COMMITTEE 
DATE OF MEETING: 24 JUNE 2019
REPORT OF: Corporate Manager Democratic and Civic Support
TITLE:             Planning Site Inspections 

Is this a Key Decision?
No

Is this an Executive or Council Function?
No

1. What is the report about?

1.1 To agree a schedule of dates and rota of Members for site inspection parties.

1.2 Normally inspections will commence at 9.30 a.m.

2. Recommendations:

2.1 that the schedule of dates be approved.

3. Reason for the recommendation:

3.1 To advice Members in advance of meeting dates 

4. Report Details:

          Proposed dates and rota for site inspections are:-

Tuesday 16 July 2019               Councillors Bialyk, Branston and Foale

Tuesday 20 August 2019           Councillors  Sutton, Sheldon and Williams 

Tuesday 17 September 2019    Councillors , Mitchell, Morse and Pierce

Tuesday 15 October 2019         Councillors Ghusain, Harvey and Mrs Henson

Tuesday 19 November 2019     Councillors Branston, Bialyk and Foale 

Tuesday 17 December  2019    Councillors  Williams, Sheldon and Sutton 

Tuesday 28 January 2020         Councillors Mitchell, Morse and Pierce

Tuesday 3 March 2020             Councillors Ghusain, Mrs Henson and Harvey

Tuesday 7 April 2020              Councillors Lyons, Foale and Branston

Tuesday 5 May 2020              To be advised

Page 69

Agenda Item 8



Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) 
Background Documents 

None

CORPORATE MANAGER DEMOCRATIC AND CIVIC SUPPORT
14 JUNE 2019

4. What are the equality and diversity impacts of this decision? 

An Equalities Impact Assessment is included in the report.

Page 70


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Planning Application No. 18/1120/OUT - Land adjoining 46 Newcourt Road, Exeter
	Location Plan- Agricultural Field Adjoining 46 Newcourt Road

	6 List of Decisions Made and Withdrawn Applications
	Delegated Decisions 3 May - 13 June

	7 Appeals Report
	8 Site Inspection party - Rota for Visits

